
CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA AND SUMMARY REPORT 

October 8, 2013 – REGULAR SESSION 

 
Mission Statement: To provide leadership in advancing core community values; sustain safety, security and health; 

and provide progressive, caring and effective services. We take pride in building a community where individuals, 

families and businesses can develop and thrive. 

 
Executive Conference Room 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 
6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

Discussion on the CDBG Funding Allocation 

Discussion on the Clearfield Station Master Development Plan 

Discussion of the Buxton Retail Leakage Analysis 

Discussion on Development of City Property Adjacent to Pinnacle Apartments 

and Sundowner Condominiums near the Hillside Subdivision 

 
(Any items not addressed prior to the Policy Session will be addressed in a Work Session 

immediately following the Policy Session.) 

 
City Council Chambers 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION 
CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Wood 

OPENING CEREMONY:   Councilmember Shepherd 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  September 10, 2013 – Work Session 

      September 24, 2013 – Regular Session 

 

PRESENTATION: 

1. PRESENTATION TO TYLER BYINGTON FOR RECOGNITION OF RECEIVING 

THE RANK OF EAGLE SCOUT 
 

BACKGROUND: Tyler Byington has completed the requirements to receive the rank of Eagle 

Scout. Mayor Wood and the City Council desire to recognize Tyler and acknowledge his 

achievement. 

 

2. PRESENTATION OF THE YARD OF THE YEAR AWARD 

 
 BACKGROUND: Each year, Clearfield City sponsors a Yard of the Week contest throughout 

 the City. The Parks and Recreation Commission members visit eleven different zones in the City 

 during the summer and submit a weekly winner. At the end of the summer, the Commission 

 members judge the weekly winners and select a winner for Yard of the Year. This year’s Yard of 

 the Year winner is William Park. The runners-up are Howard & Karen Kirkpatrick and Rodger 

 and Edith Hanson. 



PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

3. PUBLIC HEARING ON GPA 1308-0004, A REQUEST BY CLEARFIELD CITY TO 

 AMEND ITS GENERAL PLAN TO INCLUDE REFERENCES TO THE MIXED USE 

 (MU) ZONE  

 
 BACKGROUND: In January 2013, the Clearfield City Council approved Ordinance 2013-01, 

 which created the Mixed Use (MU) Zone. However, before the new MU Zone can be utilized, as 

 a matter of housekeeping, it should be incorporated into the General Plan. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment.  

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING ON FSP 1307-0004, A REQUEST BY MARK THAYNE, ON 

BEHALF OF EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC, FOR A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT 

TO SUBDIVIDE A COMBINED ACREAGE OF 6.91 ACRES INTO TWO PHASES 

WITH A TOTAL OF 27 LOTS WHICH WILL BE KNOWN AS THE JON’S PARK 

SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 

 
 BACKGROUND: The request is to subdivide a combined acreage of 6.91 acres into two phases 

 with a total of 27 lots which will be known as the Jon’s Park Subdivision Phase 1 and Phase 2. 

 The site is located in the vicinity of 125 North and 150 North Pacific Avenue and is currently 

 zoned R-1-Open (Residential). The public hearing was opened and continued from the meeting 

 on September 10, 2013.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING ON RZN 1304-0007, A REQUEST BY MICHAEL 

 CHRISTENSEN, ON BEHALF OF THE THACKERAY GARN COMPANY, FOR A 

 REZONING FROM C-2 (COMMERCIAL) AND M-1 (MANUFACTURING) TO 

 MU (MIXED USE)  

 
 BACKGROUND: UTA (Utah Transit Authority) currently owns the 72 acres located at 

 approximately 1250 South State Street and has hired Thackeray Garn to develop it. The rezone is 

 one of the steps required for the development process.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Open the public hearing and continue until November 12, 2013.  

 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

7. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2013-11 AUTHORIZING MINOR 

MODIFICATIONS TO THE CITY’S GENERAL PLAN TO INCLUDE THE NEWLY 

ENACTED MIXED USE (MU) ZONE ALONG WITH OTHER MINIMAL 

ASSOCIATED CHANGES 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance 2013-11 authorizing minor modifications to the 

City’s General Plan to include the newly enacted Mixed Use (MU) Zone along with other 

minimal associated changes and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 



 

8. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FSP 1307-0004, A REQUEST BY MARK THAYNE, ON 

 BEHALF OF EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC, FOR A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT 

 FOR JON’S PARK SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve FSP 1307-0004, a request by Mark Thayne, on behalf of 

 Evergreen Holding, LLC, for a final subdivision plat for Jon’s Park Subdivision Phase 1 and 

 Phase 2 and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

9. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE ADDENDUM TO THE DEVELOPMENT 

 AGREEMENT FOR JON’S PARK SUBDIVISION  

 
 BACKGROUND: On April 22, 2013, the City Council approved the final plat for Jon’s Park, and 

 the corresponding Development Agreement was executed on June 29, 2010. However, the final 

 plat was never recorded and no construction ever took place, resulting in the expiration of that 

 plat approval. The Planning Commission approved the plat, with conditions, during its meeting 

 on September 4, 2013. In the course of reviewing the resubmitted plat application, it became 

 apparent the existing Development Agreement would need to be amended.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Addendum to the Development Agreement for Jon’s Park 

 Subdivision and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

10. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2013-08 AMENDING TITLE 1, 

 CHAPTER 7 OF THE CLEARFIELD CITY CODE BY ADDING SECTION 10, 

 ESTABLISHING A MUNICIPAL ETHICS COMMISSION 

 
 BACKGROUND: Recent Legislation established an Ethics Commission to review and address 

 complaints regarding activities of certain elected and appointed officials. The City determined it 

 would be in its best interest to establish its own Ethics Commission for this purpose.   

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve ordinance 2013-08 amending Title 1, Chapter 7 of the 

 Clearfield City Code by adding Section 10, establishing a Municipal Ethics Commission and 

 authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

11. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2013-17 AUTHORIZING AN 

 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CREATION OF AN ETHICS 

 COMMISSION AS PROVIDED FOR BY STATE LAW 

 
 BACKGROUND: The Interlocal Agreement allows the City to participate with Bountiful, Layton 

 and Roy in creating an Ethics Commission as provided for by State Law to review any complaints 

 regarding the actions of a local entity’s elected officials and any executive officer.  

  

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2013-17 authorizing an Interlocal Agreement with 

 the creation of an Ethics Commission as provided for by State law and authorize the Mayor’s 

 signature to any necessary documents.  

 

 

 

 



COMMUNICATION ITEMS: 
 Mayor’s Report 

 City Councils’ Reports 

 City Manager’s Report 

 Staffs’ Reports 

 

**COUNCIL MEETING ADJOURN** 
 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of October, 2013. 

 

/s/Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 

The City of Clearfield, in accordance with the ‘Americans with Disabilities Act’ provides 

accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens needing assistance.  

Persons requesting these accommodations for City sponsored public meetings, service programs or events 

should call Nancy Dean at 525-2714, giving her 48-hour notice.  
 

 





 

1 
 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

September 10, 2013 

 

PRESIDING:   Don Wood   Mayor  

 

PRESENT:   Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 

    Kathryn Murray  Councilmember 

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

EXCUSED:   Mark Shepherd  Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Kim Dabb   Operations Manager 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Summer Palmer  Acting Administrative Services Dir.  

    Steve Guy   City Treasurer 

    Marliss Scott   Public Relations/Marketing 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS:  Beverly Bradley – Standard Examiner, Keri Benson – City Council Candidate, Lee 

Schaffer, Sharon Hinckley, Jennifer Wade, Shannon Anderson, Richard Knapp 

 

Mayor Wood called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATIONS (HOAS) 

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, stated the Springfield Estates Subdivision was developed in 2002 

and consisted of four phases with approximately 130 lots. He reported a fire, caused by a 

transformer, occurred in some of the open space associated with the subdivision caused damage 

because the property had not been maintained and the water had been shut off. He stated the lack 

of maintenance of some properties in the development was related to the issues with the 

establishment of the  Homeowners Association (HOA) in that development.  

 

Mr. Lenhard reminded the Council of previous discussions specific to HOAs in the City and 

indicated the HOAs in the Autumn Ridge and West Park Village developments had been 

appropriately established. He indicated staff had presented the option of designating a special 

assessment area (additional property tax) for the subdivisions that would cover costs associated 

with maintaining the open space areas within the developments eliminating the practice of 

having the HOA be responsible for the maintenance. He expressed his opinion if homeowner’s 



 

2 
 

disagreed with HOA practice, they would most likely disagree with the designation of a special 

assessment area for the open space maintenance.  

 

Mr. Lenhard stated circumstances specific to the HOA in Springfield Estates were a different 

situation. He explained the subdivision was completed in four phases and the development 

agreement with the City was very specific about requiring that the developer would be 

responsible for the establishment of the HOA for the purpose of maintaining the four small 

parcels of open spaces. He reported phase one consisted of 38 lots and the development 

agreement and CCR’s (Codes, Covenants and Restrictions) were recorded against those lots. He 

mentioned the CCR’s were also recorded against the property associated with phase two. He 

believed home buyers in those two phases should have been made aware of the HOA 

requirement by the title company at the time of closing.  

 

Mr. Lenhard stated the majority of the building lots were located in phases three and four; 

however, there was no documentation recorded against any of the lots specific to the HOA 

requirement. He pointed out signed development agreements could exist but they had not been 

recorded at the Davis County Recorder’s Office and believed the City owned some of the 

responsibility for the miscommunication with that subdivision. He inquired if Eric Howes, 

Community Services Director, was able to assemble some numbers specific to the maintenance 

costs regarding the open spaces. Mr. Howes responded he didn’t have cost figures but estimated 

the costs somewhere between $5,000-$6,000. Mr. Lenhard stated it would be in the best interest 

of the City to have the four open space parcels deeded to the City if it were to assume the 

maintenance responsibilities and indicated it appeared the developer still owned them.   

 

Councilmember Bush believed one of the parcels was intended to be a retention basin. A 

discussion took place specific to ownership of the open space parcels and whether a retention 

basin was needed. Councilmember Murray inquired if the City would be responsible to install 

sprinkler system, grass, etc. in addition to completing or contracting maintenance of the open 

spaces if the properties were deeded to the City. Mr. Lenhard commented there would be some 

rehabilitation costs associated with maintaining the parcels. Shannon Anderson, resident, 

reported the small fire on the property had damaged fences belonging to neighboring properties. 

Mr. Lenhard commented the damaged fence would be a civil issue between property owners. 

Ms. Anderson briefly explained where the properties were located in the development. 

 

Councilmember LeBaron requested clarification if the failure to have the CCR’s recorded at the 

County offices was the responsibility of the City. Mr. Lenhard responded in the affirmative.  

Mayor Wood asked the Council for direction on how staff should be directed to proceed; 

whether contact should be made to the developer or if the City should initiate the process in 

taking control of the properties. Mr. Lenhard pointed out there was an HOA established for 

phases one and two in the subdivision. Councilmember Young pointed out this was not the only 

HOA in the City and it was not the only one in which there were contentions about the validity 

of the HOA. He expressed concern how other HOAs could perceive the City’s involvement 

specific to the maintenance of the open space and setting precedence. Councilmember LeBaron 

believed the City was responsible to some extent as it didn’t ensure the recording of the HOA for 

all phases of the subdivision. Mr. Lenhard commented it was always intended for all four phases 

to share the maintenance responsibility and not just the properties located in phases one and two, 



 

3 
 

although the open space parcels were located in phases one and two. Brian Brower, City 

Attorney, commented although the parcels were located in phases one and two he believed the 

storm water retention requirements were being met for the entire subdivision.   

Councilmember Murray inquired if the City would become the owners of the property or would 

it be designated as an assessment area. Mr. Lenhard responded it would be maintained as City 

owned open space. Councilmember Murray clarified the residents wouldn’t fund the 

maintenance of the property.   

 

Shannon Anderson, resident, expressed her opinion if it came down to an HOA funding the 

maintenance of the open space the issue would continue for another ten years. She continued 

residents living in phases one and two had already met with the developer due to the fact that the 

HOA requirements were never included with closing documents from the title company, except 

for its inclusion as an amendment included with the warranty deed. She emphasized the realtor 

who managed the model home wasn’t even aware of the HOA requirement. 

 

Mr. Brower mentioned he had been involved with previous discussions with residents over the 

years that had assured him they too had no knowledge an HOA was tied to their property. He 

explained how an adequate protest would impact the City’s designation of an assessment area. 

Mayor Wood commented if the residents weren’t receptive to participation in an assessment area 

it made sense they would also be opposed to participation in an HOA. Nancy Dean, City 

Recorder, reminded the Council how a similar situation regarding another open space parcel of 

property located within the City had taken place. Mr. Lenhard reported his research of the issue 

reflected the City hadn’t properly fulfilled its obligation under the development agreement 

specific to the recording of the HOA requirements with Davis County.  

 

Councilmember Young inquired if the developer were still the owner of record for the open 

space property wouldn’t they be liable for the maintenance. Mr. Lenhard responded in the 

affirmative and indicated the City had continued to send violation notices specific to the 

maintenance of the open space. Mayor Wood reported the developer would rather pay any fines 

associated with the neglect of the open space property than to develop or maintain the parcels. A 

discussion took place regarding ownership of the property.   

 

Councilmember LeBaron expressed his displeasure the City didn’t follow through ensuring the 

creation of the HOA and believed the City should now contact the developer to obtain the 

property and assume future maintenance responsibilities. He suggested having the city engineer 

determine the need for the undeveloped parcel previously designated as a retention basin to 

determine if it was needed for that purpose. He continued if that purpose was not called for it 

should also be deeded to the City for future maintenance as well. Mayor Wood believed it would 

also be prudent to include provisions requiring the developer to landscape that parcel specifically 

identifying the City’s expectation.  

 

Councilmember Murray agreed with Councilmember LeBaron and Mayor Wood’s comments 

and believed the City should assume the long term maintenance responsibility; however, the 

developer should live up to his obligation in regards to developing/landscaping prior to the City’s 

acceptance of the parcels.   

 



 

4 
 

Councilmember Young agreed the City should take over the maintenance and believed the City 

had responsibility for these parcels. He suggested the City should approach the developer 

regarding its responsibility specific to the development/landscaping. He stated he would like 

more information from Mr. Hodge regarding the detention basin. He expressed concern specific 

to creating a precedence with encouraging other HOAs to approach the City to solicit its 

involvement or participation in maintaining other open space parcels. He believed the City had 

some responsibility to the residents.  

 

Councilmember Bush also believed the City shouldered some responsibility regarding the matter 

and expressed concern with the developer deeding the parcels to the City designated as detention 

basins. He believed there were options for the City to consider for future long term maintenance.     

 

Mr. Lenhard indicated staff would proceed with future discussions specific to the open space 

parcels.  

 

Lee Schaffer, Sharon Hinckley, Jennifer Wade and Shannon Anderson left the meeting at  

8:10 p.m. 
 

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL REPORTS BY CITY TREASURER 

 

Steve Guy, City Treasurer, reviewed the General Fund Expenditures and Revenues for the 

budget year ending in June 2013. He reminded the Council since the State had increased the 

amount of excess fund balance from eighteen percent to twenty five percent there was 

approximately $175,000 which could be appropriated for additional projects, other than what had 

been designated for in the 2014 Fiscal Year.    

 

DISCUSSION ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2014 MARKETING CAMPAIGN 

 

Marliss Scott, Public Relations/Marketing, explained the December newsletter would be a 

monthly calendar format for the upcoming year as opposed to the article format. Mayor Wood 

commented he would like to have his holiday address in the November newsletter and suggested 

allowing Councilmember Murray the opportunity to share a farewell to the residents.  

 

Ms. Scott reminded the Council the goal of the marketing campaign was to brand and identify 

the City and to promote a positive image. She shared a visual presentation pertaining to the 

campaign and reviewed previous costs associated with it. She stated the billboard portion of the 

campaign was completed and indicated the largest portion of the budget would be directed 

toward Internet (social media, videos, city website). She mentioned the street banner display 

would continue and in addition there were eight City vehicles wrapped with advertising. She 

reported the UTA bus billboards would continue through January 2014. She shared the proposed 

costs of the current year’s marketing campaign with the Council. 

 

She explained the current year’s marketing proposal was to make and use quality videos 

pertaining to the City because video was one of the most effective ways to reach a target 

audience and she shared some statistics. She shared some video examples with the Council.  

 



 

5 
 

Councilmember LeBaron announced he was declaring a conflict of interest as a relative of his 

owned one of the video companies.  

 

Ms. Scott shared some ideas on how to get the video to be viewed: social media, websites, search 

engines, etc. and stated the success of the video campaign would be measured by clicks, views or 

length of engagement. She requested direction and feedback from the Council.  

 

Councilmember Young believed the goal of the video campaign should be directed to businesses 

desiring to locate within the City. He asked if staff had any strategy on how it desired to reach its 

target audience. Ms. Scott responded the video company would also assist the City in knowing 

how and where to make the video available for viewing. She reviewed rough costs provided by 

some video companies and services provided. She believed the success of the videos would be 

two fold; not only promoting business/manufacturing but also in promoting the perception of the 

local area.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, shared an example of how a quality of life video could be used 

in rebranding the image of Clearfield while another video could be used to entice 

business/industry to the area with the We’ve Got It Made campaign. He also indicated where 

those videos could be placed for viewing such as EDCUtah, Davis County Economic 

Development, etc.  

 

Councilmember Bush inquired what the cost variance was from the videos submitted by the four 

companies. Ms. Scott responded there would probably be a significant difference in costs due to 

the varied representations of videos. Mr. Allen pointed out the procurement process had not been 

completed; rather, tonight’s discussion was to determine if the videos were consistent with the 

Council’s desires discussed during the budget process.   

 

Councilmember Young expressed his opinion the videos should be used to target 

business/industry as opposed to the City’s residents. He suggested even videos highlighting 

quality of life should be used toward business relocation.   

 

Councilmember LeBaron expressed confidence with the implementation and use of videos 

because the City would be one of the first to use the advertising tool. A discussion took place 

relative to costs associated with the implementation of video advertising. Mr. Allen suggested 

soliciting an RFP (Request for Proposal) with the designation of a set dollar figure and asking for 

submissions which would identify what could be provided for that specific cost.   

 

Councilmember Bush suggested contacting the neighboring universities to determine if there was 

interest from students. Ms. Scott responded some of those students had submitted videos for the 

video contest previously held and believed the City would desire a higher quality.  

 

Mayor Wood shared a personal example of using and selecting a video company for advertising 

and believed the City could find something less expensive than what had been referred to by one 

of the companies and a discussion took place.  

 



 

6 
 

The Council directed staff to proceed with the video RFP in conjunction with the marketing 

campaign.   

 

DISCUSSION ON THE RECREATION SOFTWARE 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reminded the Council of the previous work session 

discussion in which the Council had directed staff to locate additional funding of $13,000 which 

could be used toward the software purchase. He distributed a handout and stated staff had 

completed research to determine if the City was assessing fees appropriately for its recreation 

programs. He explained the research was based on the actual number of participants and reported 

if an additional one dollar was assessed for individual program registration and an additional ten 

dollars for team registration, the increases would generate thirteen thousand dollars.  

 

Mr. Howes mentioned another option which could be considered would be to increase the 

membership fees at the Aquatic Center; however, he suggested not making significant changes to 

those fees at this time. He reported based on the current number of memberships, a small 

increase of ten dollars would generate eleven thousand dollars. Mr. Howes believed any increase 

associated with the Aquatic Center should not be implemented until a membership/fee analysis 

could be completed.   

 

Mr. Howes reminded the Council the cost for the software was approximately $35,000 and only 

$22,000 had been appropriated for that purchase. He believed the program would pay for itself 

within five years.  

  

Councilmember Young agreed that until the membership analysis was completed no changes 

should be made to the membership fees. Mr. Howes clarified the additional one dollar fee would 

be added to program registrations from now until June to cover the additional software costs. He 

also explained how use and implementation of the new software could net savings for the City in 

the long run.  

 

Councilmember Bush expressed agreement with Councilmember Young regarding the Aquatic 

Center memberships. He suggested holding off with the increase until the sale of the bleachers to 

determine if the small increase could be lowered. He also believed the analysis would identify 

other areas in which increases could be implemented.  

 

Mayor Wood summarized results from the discussion were to direct staff to use the proceeds 

from the sale of the bleachers then implementing the one dollar increase to generate the needed 

revenue. The Council agreed.  

 

DISCUSSION ON CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reminded the Council of previous discussions in 

which it had desired Christmas decorations with a more “traditional” motif and indicated funds 

had been appropriated during the budget process for the purchase of the new decorations. 

Councilmember Murray inquired what would be done with the other decorations. Mr. Howes 

responded the City would retain them for the time and if directed by the Council he could try to 



 

7 
 

sell them. Councilmember Murray suggested keeping and using the wreaths. He distributed a 

handout illustrating the proposed new decorations. He indicated he would proceed with the 

purchase.   

 

DISCUSSION ON REPAIR TO THE CENTER STREET OVERPASS 

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, explained some of the dirt and fill used for the embankment of 

the 200 South/Center Street overpass had slipped and impacted the parking lot at the Davis 

County Health Department facility. He reported the City had solicited assessments from 

geotechnical engineers and contractors specific to the failure and subsequent repair. He indicated 

the cause of the failure was a combination of a faulty sprinkler system issue compounded by 

recent rains. He emphasized the overpass was structurally sound and the failure was not related 

to any previous issues. He pointed out now that the landscaping on the slopes had been 

established water beyond regular rainfall was not needed.  

 

Mr. Lenhard reported rough estimates from contractors had reflected a cost of approximately 

$50,000 for the repair and recommended staff proceed immediately with repairing the structure. 

He stated since funds had not been appropriated for this purpose it would be a General Fund 

expense and addressed during the reopening of the budget.  

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney, explained how the procurement process identified what would be 

allowed for the emergency situation. A discussion took place specific to the time frame to repair 

the structure. Mr. Lenhard emphasized the City would proceed as quickly as the weather 

permitted for the repair.  

 

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

 



 

1 
 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION 

September 24, 2013 

 

PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Mayor Pro Tem  

 

PRESENT:   Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 

    Kathryn Murray  Councilmember 

    Mark Shepherd  Councilmember 

     

EXCUSED:   Don Wood   Mayor 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Chris Horrocks  Building Permit Specialist  

      

EXCUSED:   Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Clearfield Boy Scout Troop 582, Keri Benson – City Council Candidate, Gary 

Baldwin – Mayoral Candidate, Robert Browning  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Young informed the citizens present that if they would like to comment during 

Citizen Comments there were forms to fill out by the door. 

 

Councilmember Murray conducted the Opening Ceremony.  

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 10, 2013 REGULAR SESSION  

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve the minutes from the September 10, 2013 

regular session as written, seconded by Councilmember Shepherd. The motion carried 

upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, LeBaron, Murray and 

Shepherd. Voting NO – None.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Robert Browning, resident, expressed concern regarding the City’s efforts in communicating 

information to its residents. He stated he frequently reviewed the agenda a few days prior to the 

meetings and had perused the CAPER located in the Community Development Department. He 



 

2 
 

mentioned programs similar to that of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) had the 

opportunity to directly benefit the residents and expressed concern no citizen comments had been 

received during the comment period. He challenged the City to continually look for ways to use 

the City’s website, newsletter and other media to inform residents. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Young inquired if Mr. Browning was aware that the CAPER was reflective of 

implementing the CDBG plan and program. Mr. Browning believed the CDBG program and 

funding could directly make a difference to the City’s residents. 

 

Councilmember LeBaron commented the City’s current website could be difficult to navigate 

and reported the City was currently in the process of updating the website to be more user 

friendly with a desired goal that information could be obtained within three clicks. He believed 

this tool would be a significant advantage to residents looking for information specific to the 

City.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Young pointed out specifications to the CDBG program required noticed public 

hearings accepting the CAPER and the initial CDBG Action Plans. He emphasized these were 

advertised and took place during regular City Council meetings which allowed comments from 

the public.   

 

Gary Baldwin, mayoral candidate, requested clarification on the cost of the 200 South road 

improvements. Councilmember Murray couldn’t recall the exact figure but believed it was less 

than one million dollars. Mayor Pro Tem Young indicated Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, 

could research and provide the figures.  

 

Mr. Baldwin inquired about the engineering fees associated with the Barlow Street project and 

why the City used the same engineering firm on all projects. Mayor Pro Tem Young responded 

the City completed the bid process to select engineering services for a designated time period. 

Mr. Baldwin suggested the City could use engineering students from Weber State to complete 

the necessary engineering work. Councilmember LeBaron responded City projects required a 

professional engineering license and briefly reviewed the criteria to obtain the necessary 

credentials. He surmised engineering students were not qualified. 

 

Councilmember Bush pointed out the advantages associated in being familiar with the City’s 

infrastructure on behalf of the engineer.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Young announced he received an anonymous citizen comment form which he 

would read into the record: Fluoride in the drinking water – Take it out!   

 

APPROVAL OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) FOR 

PROGRAM YEAR JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013 

 

Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, stated the Council received a copy of the 2012/2013 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation 

Report (CAPER), which explained how the City carried out its CDBG program strategies, 



 

3 
 

programs and activities. He stated it identified expenditures associated with the $217,184 which 

had been appropriated. Citizens were given the opportunity to review the plan in the Community 

Development Department from August 21, 2013 to September 5, 2013. No public comments 

were received. He read a statement prepared by Stacy Millgate, CDBG Coordinator; “During the 

2012/2013 Program Year, Clearfield City received $7,355 more than the previous year. During 

both years the City had provided funding to the Clearfield Youth Resource Center and Family 

Connection Center. This year funding was provided for Davis Community Learning Center, 

whereas last year funds went to the Davis County Housing Authority. The City also allocated 

funds for the Administration’s staff and completed two separate infrastructure projects, 100 

North in 2012 and Locust Street in 2013, with the majority of those funds going to the 

infrastructure projects as per CDBG guidelines that only fifteen percent of the fund in total could 

be spent on soft costs or service provision.”   
 

Councilmember Shepherd moved to approve the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) and authorize the 

Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. The 

motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Bush, LeBaron, 

Murray, Shepherd and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Young – nothing to report.  

 

Councilmember Bush  
1. Stated he attended the Utah League of Cities and Towns conference a few weeks ago and 

indicated he had emailed the Council his notes earlier in the day.  

2. Reported he attended a meeting with residents from 550 East. He believed it was successful in 

educating the residents regarding the improvements which would be completed next year. 

3. Informed the Council that the North Davis Sewer District had approved the new Impact Fee 

Schedule. He stated no public comments were made. He pointed out the new fee schedule would be 

implemented 90 days after passage which would be December 12, 2013.  

4. Announced the Parks & Recreation Commission had selected the Yard of the Year winner at its 

meeting on Wednesday, September 18, 2013. 

5. Informed the Council that Curtis Dickson, Community Services Deputy Director, had been 

assembling the new bleachers for the parks. He expressed his opinion the illustrations and instructions 

were difficult to follow.  

6. Indicated he had attended the car show and carnival at Chancellor Garden and Rocky Mountain 

Healthcare facilities. He commented there were nice looking cars on display and there was good food to 

enjoy.  

7. Announced he would be walking to school with students attending Doxey Elementary on 

Wednesday, September 25, 2013.  

   

Councilmember LeBaron – expressed his opinion the feedback by staff involved with the redesign of the 

website was very insightful. He believed the new site would be user friendly allowing citizens’ input prior 

to its completion. He stated it would be a great communication tool.  

 

Councilmember Murray – nothing to report.  

 

 



 

4 
 

Councilmember Shepherd 

1. Reported he had also attended the Utah League of Cities and Towns meetings.  

2.  Announced the new leadership for the Kiwanis Club would be installed at the next meeting on 

Thursday, September 26, 2013.   

 

STAFFS’ REPORTS 

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney – Reported on the repair of the Center Street/200 South Overpass. He 

clarified the bridge itself was not in need of repair; rather that of the land slide or sloughing of soil from 

the south embankment on the east side. He indicated the bridge was closed just a little over a week. He 

stated two soil engineers were consulted and although the structure was sound, they both recommended 

closure of the bridge to eliminate any additional erosion caused by vibration from vehicular traffic. He 

stated an emergency procurement process had been completed and announced Scott Hodge, Public Works 

Director, would update the Council on the process.  

 

Scott Hodge, Public Works Director – Reminded the Council of the informal direction to staff to proceed 

with the repair of the embankment repair associated with the Center Street/200 South Overpass. He stated 

staff solicited proposals from three different contractors. He stated the lowest bid was $47,550, the next 

bid was $47,900 and the last bid was $75,800. He explained as part of the proposal the City inquired as to 

how quickly the contractor could begin the repair work in addition to analyzing the dollar amounts in the 

proposal. He reported the contractor which had submitted the bid of $47,900 stated they could begin work 

on Sunday and after analyzing the bid figures, believed it was the best proposal. He announced the cost to 

complete the repair was actually less than the submitted proposal. Mr. Brower pointed out the difference 

in line items included the proposals submitted by the two lowest contractors specific to the unit costs 

associated with fill product. He continued even with the $2,100 change order, the repair cost to the City 

was ultimately cheaper than if the City had gone with the lowest proposal. He requested any questions 

regarding the repair cost be directed to himself or Mr. Hodge. Councilmember Bush asked if the 

sprinkling system associated with the erosion/land slide had been addressed. Eric Howes, Community 

Services Director, responded the sprinkler issue had been addressed.  

 

Councilmember Bush welcomed the Boy Scouts to the meeting. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Young expressed appreciation to the Boy Scout leaders.  

 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council Councilmember Murray 

moved to adjourn at 7:35 p.m., seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. All voting AYE.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 City  
Council 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

#7 

 

 
TO:    Clearfield City Council 
 
FROM:  Scott A. Hess  
   Development Services Manager 

scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org (801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: October 8, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, Discussion and Possible Action on GPA 1308-0004, a 

request by Clearfield City to amend its General Plan to include references 
to the Mixed Use (MU) Zone. The operation of adopting changes to the 
General Plan is completed through Ordinance 2013-11. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
After taking comment during the public hearing, move to approve GPA 1308-0004, an 
amendment of the General Plan to include references to the Mixed Use (MU) Zone and other 
related minor modifications. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
In January 2013, the Clearfield City Council approved Ordinance 2013-01, which created the 
Mixed Use (MU) Zone.  However, before the new MU Zone can be utilized, as a matter of 
housekeeping, it should be incorporated into the General Plan. 
 

PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
The MU Zone can be accommodated in the General Plan with a few minor modifications.  The 
proposed amendments are highlighted in the attached version of the General Plan, and are 
explained as follows: 
 

1. The General Plan includes brief descriptions of the City’s different zoning designations 
and lists them in a chart.  Accordingly, the MU Zone should be described and listed.  
These changes are seen on pages 11 and 13. 
 

2. The Affordable Housing Element of the General Plan includes a provision that does not 
allow rezoning for the purpose of multi-family residential development “…except as part 
of an approved R-3R, C-R, or D-R Zone project.”  The MU Zone is similar to the 
Commercial Residential (C-R) Zone in that they both aim to encourage a combination of 
uses (commercial and residential) on a property.  Since the intent of this provision in the 
General Plan is to allow multi-family residential development in a mixed use type project, 

mailto:scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org


GPA 1308-0004 
September 4, 2013 PC Meeting 

 - 2 of 2 - 

given the similarities between the MU and C-R Zones, the MU Zone should also be 
included.  This revision is seen on page 22. 
 

It is also proposed that the affordable housing data on page 22 be updated.  Figure 4.1, the 
“Profile of Clearfield” table, contains old data, and the study that generated that table has not 
been updated.  However, more recent statistics can be found on www.census.gov.  Therefore, 
the amendment would delete the table and a few other phrases, and insert a couple sentences 
referencing newer data pertaining to affordable housing in Clearfield. 
 
On September 4, 2013, Clearfield City Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item, 
and forwarded to the City Council a unanimous decision to recommend approval of the 
proposed General Plan amendments.   
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Clearfield City Ordinance 2013-11, Ordinance Amending the General Plan 
2. Clearfield City General Plan, with amendments 

http://www.census.gov/


CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2013-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 

 

PREAMBLE: This Ordinance makes minor modifications to the Clearfield City General 

Plan to bring it current based upon newly enacted ordinances by adding 

the Mixed Use (MU) Zone along with other minimal associated changes.  

  

 WHEREAS, earlier this year the Clearfield City Council created the new Mixed 

Use (MU) Zone; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to allow the use of the new MU Zone within the City, 

corresponding changes need to be made to the City’s General Plan to reflect the inclusion 

of the new zone; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after a public hearing on the matter, the Clearfield City Planning 

Commission recommended the Clearfield City Council adopt the minor modifications to 

the City’s General Plan as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached to this ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Clearfield City Council received and reviewed the minor 

modifications recommended by the Clearfield City Planning Commission; and  

 

 WHEREAS, following proper notice, as set forth by state law, the City Council 

held a public hearing on the matter and received input thereon; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the City Council carefully considered 

comments made during the public hearing as well as the Planning Commission’s 

recommendations regarding the proposed modifications; and 

 

 WHEREAS, following its public deliberation, the City Council has determined 

that the minor modifications to the City’s General Plan as set forth in Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto are in the best interests of Clearfield City, its residents as well as 

businesses and will most effectively implement the City’s long term planning and 

development efforts;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Clearfield City Council that: 

 

Section 1. General Plan Amendment: The minor modifications to the Clearfield City 

General Plan as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto are hereby adopted and 

incorporated into the City’s General Plan. 

 

Section 3. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

posting in three public places within Clearfield City. 

 

 



DATED this 8th day of October, 2013, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the 

Clearfield City Council. 

 

 

 

      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Donald W. Wood, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder  

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL  

 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 

  ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

DON WOOD, MAYOR MARK SHEPHERD 

MARILYN FRYER DOYLE SPRAGUE 

KATHRYN MURRAY BRUCE YOUNG 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

NIKE PETERSON, CHAIR BILL MOORE 

RANDY BUTCHER BARBARA PERRY 

DARREN CARPENTER MATT STONES 

JOEL GAERTE BRANDON STANGER 

RON JONES  

 
 

STAFF 
 

 
GREGG BENSON 
City Planner 

 
GREG KRUSI 

Police Chief 

BRIAN BROWER 
City Attorney 

 
ADAM LENHARD 

Community Development Director 
 
TRACY HEUN  
Community Services Director 

 
MICHAEL MCDONALD 

Building Inspector 
 
CHRIS HILLMAN 
City Manager 

 
SCOTT NELSON 

City Engineer 
 
SCOTT HODGE 
Public Works Director 

 
BOB WYLIE 

Administrative Services Director 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................... 3 
 
 
LAND USE ELEMENT .................................................................................................................................. 6 

 
 
FIGURE 2.1 CURRENT LAND USE BY TYPE (TABLE) .............................................................................. 6 

 
 
FIGURE 2.2 CURRENT LAND USE BY TYPE (CHART) ............................................................................. 7 

 
 
FIGURE 2.3 CURRENT LAND USE BY ZONING ........................................................................................ 8 
 
 
FIGURE 2.4 LAND USE CATEGORIES AND ZONING ............................................................................. 13 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT ................................................................................................................. 17 

 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING ELEMENT ........................................................................................................ 22 

 
 
FIGURE 4.1 AFFORDABLE HOUSING DATA FROM 2000 CENSUS ...................................................... 22 

 
 
EXHIBIT 1: FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE GENERAL PLAN 
 
 
EXHIBIT 2: TRANSPORTATION MAP OF THE GENERAL PLAN 
 
 
EXHIBIT 3: TRAILS MASTER PLAN AND MAPS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 3 

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This General Plan has been prepared as a guide for the future growth and development of 
Clearfield City.  It contains goals and policies that, if followed, are intended to promote new 
economic growth, encourage neighborhood stability, and improve the overall character of the 
community. 
 
This plan consists of three main elements: 
 

1) Land Use 
 
2) Transportation 

 
3) Affordable Housing 

 
 
The Maps referred to throughout this document and attached as exhibits are an essential part of 
the Plan.  The 2004 Trails Master Plan is also included as previously adopted by the City. 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
 
The City has prepared and adopted this General Plan in accordance with Utah Code Title 10 - 
Cities and Towns, Chapter 9a - Municipal Land Use Development and Management. 
 
 
DYNAMICS OF THE GENERAL PLAN 
 
This General Plan is intended to be a living document.  It should be updated or amended as 
necessary every five to seven years to ensure that it reflects the current goals and objectives of 
the City.  Amendments to the Plan may be initiated by the Planning Commission, the City 
Council, City Staff, or the Public.  Once the General Plan has been adopted, the Planning 
Commission and City Council should refer to it for guidance before making decisions pertaining 
to the physical development of the City. 
 
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 
 
The following flowchart illustrates the process of adopting or amending the General Plan: 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 4 

General Plan amendment application filed with zoning 
administrator. 

Application reviewed by zoning administrator for 
completeness. 

Public hearing scheduled with Planning Commission; city 
recorder provides notice as required.  

 
 

Planning Commission conducts and closes public hearing on 
the application. 

Planning Commission considers application and all input 
received.  By motion, the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation is transmitted to the City Council. 

Public hearing scheduled for City Council; City Recorder 
provides notice as required.  The City Council holds the 

public hearing and considers the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation, the application, and all input received, 

and approves or denies the amendment by motion.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 5 

COMMUNITY VISION  
 
It is Clearfield City’s community vision to provide for a strong, positive civic image and identity 
based on a high-quality living environment in a clean and attractive physical setting. 
 
The Objectives of this Community Vision are to: 
 
1. Recognize and promote Clearfield as a leading Davis County community with a positive 

environment, consistent with its traditional family-oriented values. 
 
2. Promote Clearfield as a regional center for manufacturing, governmental, and 

commercial facilities with excellent accessibility and a high-quality business 
environment. 

 
3. Encourage redevelopment to take full advantage of Clearfield’s strategic location with 

respect to major rail and highway amenities and proximity to air transportation.  
 
4. Preserve, protect and enhance the historical, cultural, and natural resources of the 

community. 
 
5. Ensure the continued and orderly growth of the City through long-term utility and 

infrastructure planning for culinary water, sewer, storm drainage, and waste removal.   
 
6.  Channel future growth and development into areas that can be efficiently and effectively 

served by public infrastructure and facilities. 
 
7. Ensure that new development is of exceptional quality and expresses attractive 

architectural and site design standards consistent with its particular use and location. 
 
8. Promote intergovernmental cooperation and communication regarding issues of future 

development within and around Clearfield City. 
 
9. Promote the goals of the Vision 2020 Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 6 

CHAPTER 2 – LAND USE ELEMENT 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This Element of the General Plan is intended to provide land use policy direction and guidance 
to decision-makers as they address future land use changes within the City.  The Land Use 
Element is to be used in conjunction with Exhibit 1, Land Use Map of the General Plan.   
 
 
CURRENT LAND USE  
 
Clearfield encompasses approximately 4,800 acres of land (7.5 square miles), including 
transportation corridors, parks and open space, and a portion of the west side of Hill Air Force 
Base. Figures 2.1 and 2.2 show the current distribution of land throughout the City: 
 
 

Land Use Type Total Acres by Type Percent of Total 

Manufacturing 1,063 22% 

Residential 1,490 31% 

Public (parks, schools, 
government) 142 3% 

Hill Air Force Base 425 9% 

Commercial 256 6% 

Vacant, Agriculture,  
Undeveloped 592 12% 

Road, Rail & HWY 832 17% 

Total Land Use 4,800 100% 

 
Figure 2.1 Current Land Use by Type 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 7 

 
 
Figure 2.2 Current Land Use by Type 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Land Use by Type

Manufacturing
22%

Residential
31%

Road, Rail & HWY
17%

Commercial
6%

Hill Air Force Base
9%

Vacant, Agriculture, 
Undeveloped 12%

Public (parks, schools, 
government)  3%



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 8 

CURRENT ZONING 
 
There are currently 20 zoning classifications in Clearfield City – two overlay zones, two 
agricultural zones, eight residential zones, five commercial zones, one manufacturing zone, one 
public facilities zone, and the Hill Air Force Base Zone.  Figure 2.3 shows the percentage of 
land by zoning category.  A short description of the general intent and uses allowed in each 
zone is presented in the following text. 
 

 
Figure 2.3 Current Land Use by Zoning 

Current Land Use by Zoning Category

A-1
9.1%

R-1-O
4.4%

R-3
5.0%

C-R
0.5%

R-1-9
1.7%

R-2
0.4%

B-1
0.2%

C-1
1.0%

HAFB
10.7%

P-F
1.0%

R-1-6
1.1%

R-1-8
23.6%

C-2
9.5%

M-1
30.3%

R-M
1.5%



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 9 

Overlay Zones: 
The P-D Planned Development Overlay Zone was originally created to guide development of 
the City’s remaining high-density residential properties.  In late 2009 the City adopted 
comprehensive amendments to the land use ordinance that accomplish the purposes of the P-D 
Overlay Zone.  Therefore, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of land be rezoned with a P-
D Overlay.  Any property with an existing P-D overlay may continue with that designation until 
such time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law.   
 
The S-P Special Purpose Overlay Zone is a contract zone that was originally intended to 
provide a flexible approach to land use regulations based on the proposed use of the property.  
The 2009 land use ordinance amendments contain numerous regulations that accomplish the 
purposes of the S-P Overlay Zone.  Therefore, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of land 
be rezoned with an S-P Overlay.  Any property with an existing S-P overlay may continue with 
that designation until such time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law.   
 
 
Agricultural Zones: 
The A-1 Agriculture Zone is the oldest zone in the City.  It provides for agricultural uses on lots 
that are a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) square feet in size.  
 
The A-2 Agriculture Zone was created in 2009 to provide for agricultural uses and certain 
animal rights on existing, developed single-family lots that are a minimum of fourteen 
thousand five hundred twenty (14,520) square feet in size.  
 
 
Residential Zones: 
The R-1-6 Zone was created for single family use with building lots a minimum of six thousand 
five hundred (6,500) square feet in size.  Due to the large number of existing single family lots 
developed throughout the City under the provisions of the R-1-6 Zone and in order to promote a 
more balanced pattern of land use development, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of 
land be rezoned to R-1-6.  Any property with existing R-1-6 zoning may continue with that 
designation until such time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law.   
 
The R-1-8 Zone was developed to allow for slightly larger single-family lots within the City.  A 
majority of the residential neighborhoods in the City were built under this Zone.  Building lots in 
this Zone must be a minimum of eight thousand (8,000) square feet.   
 
The R-1-9 Zone is one of the newer residential zones adopted by the City.  This Zone requires 
single-family building lots that are at least nine thousand (9,000) square feet.  In order to 
simplify the administration of the City’s zoning ordinance and to promote a more balanced 
pattern of land use development, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of land be rezoned to 
R-1-9.  Any property with existing R-1-9 zoning may continue with that designation until such 
time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law. 
 
The R-1-Open Zone calls for single-family homes built around an open space element.  The 
intent is to provide local parks or open space for the City’s residents.  Since its inception in 1998 
this Zone has been preferred by developers for new residential developments.  The 2009 zoning 
ordinance amendments contain numerous regulations that accomplish the purposes of the R-1-



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 10 

Open Zone.  Therefore, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of land be rezoned to R-1-O.  
Any property with an existing R-1-O designation may continue with that designation until such 
time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law.   
 
The R-M Zone is for mobile homes or modular housing, generally built at higher densities than 
other residential zones.  The City has adopted several new zones which provide for high density 
residential development in a variety of configurations, including the R-2 Zone, R-3 Zone, and R-
3R Redevelopment Zone.  Therefore, it is the City’s policy that no new parcels of land be 
rezoned to R-M.  Any property with existing R-M zoning may continue with that designation until 
such time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable law. 
 
The R-2 Zone is designated for multi-family dwelling units with a density up to eight (8) units per 
acre.  Developments under this Zone are typically arranged as duplexes, twin homes, or 
townhome-style units.   
 
The R-3 Zone is designated for high-density multi-family dwelling units in configurations up to 
sixteen (16) units per acre.  There have been numerous apartment complexes and 
condominium projects built under this Zone.  
 
The R-3R Redevelopment Zone was created in 2009 to provide an attractive setting for new and 
redeveloped high density multiple-family dwellings with upgraded design features. It is primarily 
intended to encourage the redevelopment of existing high-density residential developments 
within the City. Certain nonresidential uses that are compatible with residential development are 
also anticipated and provided for.  
 
 
Commercial Zones: 
The B-1 Buffer Zone was developed to separate intense uses in the Commercial and 
Manufacturing Zones from less-intense residential neighborhoods. This Zone has helped in the 
development of several service-oriented businesses which are located in close proximity to their 
clientele.  The 2009 zoning ordinance amendments contain numerous regulations that 
accomplish the purposes of the B-1 Buffer Zone.  Therefore, it is the City’s policy that no new 
parcels of land be rezoned to B-1.  Any property with an existing B-1 designation may continue 
with that designation until such time as it is removed or changed in accordance with applicable 
law.     
 
The C-1 Zone is intended to provide areas for general office and service use mixed with light 
retail.  This Zone is also used to provide personal and clerical services near residential 
neighborhoods and hospitals. 
 
The C-2 Zone is for general commercial business activities.  This is the primary Zone found 
along the major transportation corridors of the City.   
 
The C-R Commercial Residential Zone is intended to allow for a more traditional mix of 
compatible residential and commercial uses within the same area.   
 
The D-R Downtown Redevelopment Zone is a new zone intended to provide for an attractive, 
vibrant, and safe downtown in the City; to encourage the development of vacant or underutilized 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 11 

parcels of land; and to encourage the replacement, renovation, or rehabilitation of dilapidated or 
decaying structures. 
 
The MU Mixed Use Zone is intended to provide a variety of land uses that are purposely 
combined for larger areas (40 acre minimum) located near transportation nodes and corridors.  
Mixed use areas are intended to support a broad range of land uses such as commercial, office, 
entertainment, recreational, civic and residential uses within single buildings (vertical mixed use) 
or within neighborhoods (horizontal mixed us).  The mixed use zoning permits nonresidential 
development (i.e. commercial or employment), or nonresidential and residential development, 
but it does not permit residential development without a substantial nonresidential component.   
 
Manufacturing Zone: 
The M-1 Manufacturing Zone provides areas within the City for processing, assembling, 
manufacturing, warehousing and storage activities.  This Zone is primarily utilized in and around 
the Freeport Center.   
 
 
Public Facilities Zone: 
The P-F Public Facilities Zone is appropriate for uses such as churches, schools, public 
buildings, open space, parks, public utilities and other related uses, although many of these 
uses are also allowed as permitted or conditional uses in other zones.   
 
 
Hill Air Force Base Zone: 
The HAFB Hill Air Force Base Zone consists of property within the boundaries of the federally-
owned Hill Air Force Base on the northeast side of the City.  This Zone is utilized primarily for 
Base housing and other military-related activities.  It is currently shown on the City’s Zoning 
Map, but no corresponding regulations exist for the zone due to the City’s limited land use 
authority over property owned by the Federal Government. 
 
 
FUTURE ZONING 
 
It may be necessary to amend the City’s zoning classifications from time to time to ensure that 
the goals of the City are being reached.  The Planning Commission and City Council approved 
comprehensive amendments to the land use ordinance in 2009 and 2010.  Those amendments 
should be carefully monitored to ensure they accomplish their stated purposes.   
 
 
FUTURE LAND USE 
 
The Future Land Use Map is attached to this Plan as Exhibit 1.  It is an idealized “snapshot” of 
the City’s land use at a future date, and is an integral part of this General Plan.  The following 
land use categories of the Map are intended to help guide future land use decisions: 
 
 

Commercial.  Lands designated as “Commercial” on the Future Land Use Map are to 
be used primarily for commercial activities, including office and retail.  



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 12 

 
Business Park.  The primary purpose of the Business Park designation is job creation 
in an attractive office / light manufacturing / commercial environment.   
 
Falcon Hill.  Lands designated as “Falcon Hill” on the Future Land Use Map are part of 
the Falcon Hill Master Plan at Hill Air Force Base.  The primary uses of this land will be 
for office and other commercial activities, as well as other uses identified in the Falcon 
Hill Master Plan approved by the Base.  
 
Hill Air Force Base (HAFB).  A majority of the land occupied by Hill Air Force Base is 
designated with the HAFB land use category.  This land will be used for ongoing military 
operations and training.   
 
Manufacturing.  Lands designated as “Manufacturing” on the Future Land Use Map are 
to be used primarily for manufacturing-related activities. 
 
Mixed-Use.  Lands designated as “Mixed-Use” on the Future Land Use Map are places 
where a variety of land uses are purposely combined.  Mixed-Use areas are intended to 
support a broad range of residential, commercial, recreational, entertainment, office, and 
civic uses within single buildings (vertical mixed-use), or within neighborhoods 
(horizontal mixed-use).  The Mixed-Use designation allows for commercial development 
or commercial and residential development, but not for residential development without a 
significant commercial component.   
 
Residential.  Lands designated as “Residential” on the Future Land Use Map are to be 
used primarily for residential activities in a variety of configurations and densities.  A 
portion of the existing housing on Hill Air Force Base is included in this designation.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 13 

 
Figure 2.4 below lists appropriate zoning classifications for each of the categories on the Future 
Land Use Map of the General Plan: 
 
 

General Plan Land Use 
Category 

Appropriate Zoning 
Classification(s) 

  C-1 
Commercial C-2 

  B-1** 

Business Park 
C-1 
C-2 
M-1 

Falcon Hill Falcon Hill* 
HAFB HAFB 

Manufacturing M-1 
  C-R 

Mixed-Use C-1 
 C-2 

  
D-R 
MU 

  
A-1 
A-2 

  R-1-9** 
  R-1-8 
 R-1-6** 

 Residential R-1-Open** 
  R-2 
  R-3 
 R-3R 
  R-M** 

Public Use  Public Facilities 
*Indicates appropriate zoning classifications that do not currently exist at the time of adoption of this 
General Plan 
**Existing zoning only, not to be applied to additional parcels 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 2010 14 

LAND USE GUIDELINES 
 
The following land use guidelines should be followed throughout the City: 
 
1. The identity of Clearfield should be strengthened by land uses which improve the image 

of the community and foster a positive, healthy living environment conducive to long-
term residency. 

 
2. The relationship of planned land uses should reflect consideration of existing 

development, environmental conditions, service and transportation needs, and fiscal 
impacts. 

 
3. Redevelopment should emphasize the reuse of developed areas and existing 

community resources in such a way as to increase the livability and aesthetics of the 
City.   

 
4. The Land Use Plan should provide for a full range and mix of land uses including 

residential, commercial, manufacturing, and public use areas. 
 
5. Transitions between differing land uses and intensities should be made gradually with 

compatible uses, particularly where natural or man-made buffers are not available.   
Adequate screening and buffering should be required to protect existing residential 
areas from more intense land uses.   

 
6. Growth should be guided to locations contiguous to existing development to provide City 

services and transportation in a cost-effective and efficient manner. 
 
7. Development approval should be tied to the construction of culinary water, sewer, storm 

drainage, and circulation systems. 
 
8. Density increases should be considered only after adequate infrastructure and resource 

availability have been sufficiently demonstrated. 
 
9. An interconnecting public open space system should be provided, including pedestrian 

linkages, recreational areas, natural areas, and drainage ways. 
 
10. Commercial and manufacturing uses should be highly accessible, clustered near the 

center of their service areas, and developed in harmony with the uses and character of 
surrounding districts. 

 
11. Land use patterns should be encouraged that reduce travel distances, limit pollution, 

allow for alternative modes of transportation, and conserve energy. 
 
12. The few remaining vacant properties in the City should be developed at their highest and 

best use to maximize their value to the landowner and the City.   
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 15 

13. The quality and usefulness of parks and open space should be maximized.   Open 
spaces that are small, inaccessible, difficult to maintain, or encumbered by utilities, 
drainage basins, or excessive slopes should not be encouraged. 

 
14.  Manufacturing and industrial activities should be limited to those areas already zoned for 

such uses.   
 
15.  Properties registered with the County or State for agricultural or industrial protection 

should be recognized by the City to allow such land uses. 
 
16.  Land use decisions should be based on a comprehensive understanding of their effects 

on the environment and surrounding areas.  Desirable natural resources should be 
conserved. 

 
 
 
GOALS AND POLICIES OF THE LAND USE ELEMENT: 
 
 
Goal 1:  To maintain consistency between the City’s Land Use Ordinance and the 

General Plan. 
 
Policy:  Continue to update the City’s Land Use Ordinance as necessary to maintain 

consistency with this General Plan. 
 

Implementation Measure #1: Establish new zoning designations as necessary for 
the Downtown Redevelopment Zone and R-3R Redevelopment Zone. 
 
Implementation Measure #2: Evaluate the efficacy of existing zones and make 
amendments as necessary. 

 
 
Goal 2:  Facilitate the Development of Falcon Hill at Hill Air Force Base 
 
Policy:  Continue to work with the Military Installation Development Authority (MIDA), Hill 

Air Force Base, and the Falcon Hill developers to begin construction of the 
Falcon Hill project. 

 
Implementation Measure: Continue to be actively involved in all Falcon Hill 
discussions and meetings with MIDA, Hill AFB, and the developers. 

 
 
 
Goal 3:  Increase Employment and Commercial Opportunities for Clearfield’s 

Residents.  
 
Policy:  Promote the creation of new jobs, businesses, and retail opportunities in the City. 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 16 

Implementation Measure #1: Continue to actively work with the Economic 
Development Corporation of Utah (EDCUTAH), the Governor’s Office of 
Economic Development (GOED), and other similar organizations to attract new 
businesses and jobs to Clearfield.   
 
Implementation Measure #2: Work with the owners of the Freeport Center to 
develop a revitalization plan to increase the Center’s desirability and ability to 
compete against newer manufacturing centers.   
 

 
Goal 4:  Revitalize Deteriorating Neighborhoods and Commercial Districts. 
 
Policy:  Encourage redevelopment and renovation of deteriorating neighborhoods and 

commercial districts. 
 

Implementation Measure #1: Facilitate the redevelopment of downtown Clearfield 
through public-private partnerships. 
 
Implementation Measure #2: Create land use ordinances that allow and 
encourage infill and redevelopment.   

 
 Implementation Measure #3: Continue to prioritize code enforcement and 

property maintenance throughout the City.  
 
 Implementation Measure #4: Encourage the use of the R-3R Zone and make 

land use decisions that encourage and increase home ownership and owner-
occupied housing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 17 

CHAPTER 3 - TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This Element of the General Plan is intended to provide for the safe and efficient movement of 
people and goods in the City, reinforce surrounding land development patterns, and enhance 
regional transportation facilities.  As a General Plan document, it does not necessarily indicate 
existing facilities.  The Transportation Element is to be used in conjunction with Exhibit 2, 
Transportation Map of the General Plan.   
 
The primary purpose of the Transportation Element is to balance future demands generated by 
the Land Use Element with corresponding vehicular and pedestrian infrastructure 
improvements. 
 
The recommendations included herein represent street capital improvements that may 
ultimately be needed if Clearfield's entire planning area is fully developed according to the Land 
Use Element.  It is important to emphasize that the results do not necessarily suggest needs in 
the next five, ten, or even twenty years.  Also, inherent in a long-range projection is the potential 
for variation due to unforeseen economic, political, social, and technological changes. 
 
Appropriate use of Clearfield's long-range Transportation Element should be to: 
 
1. Secure right-of-way prior to or concurrent with land development. 
 
2. Determine if outlying potential development could degrade existing streets, and consider 

actions to limit or concentrate future land-use densities, if required. 
 
3. Anticipate long-range financial demands and search for additional methods of street 

improvement funding. 
 
Thus, the recommendations of the long-range Transportation Element should be noted, but 
actual improvements must be tied to future growth. 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION AMENITIES  
 
Clearfield is easily accessed through a well-developed network of transportation amenities, 
including the Utah Transit Authority’s Frontrunner commuter rail service, Interstate I-15, 
Highway 193, Antelope Drive (1700 South), State Street, 300 North and 800 North.  It is the 
intent of this element to preserve and enhance these amenities in a manner that maximizes 
their usefulness and service to the community.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 18 

 
TRANSPORTATION MAP  
 
Exhibit 2, Transportation Map of the General Plan depicts transportation infrastructure in 
accordance with future build out and capacity.  The following street classifications are utilized: 
 

Freeways.  Streets designated as Freeways on the Transportation Map are to be 
designed to safely handle very large volumes of through-traffic.  Direct access should be 
limited to widely-spaced interchanges. Design, construction, and operation of Freeways 
shall be provided by the Utah Department of Transportation. 
 
Arterial Streets.  Streets designated as Arterial Streets on the Map are intended to 
provide through-traffic circulation between areas of the City and across the City.  Direct 
access to adjacent uses should be limited.  Arterials have two categories: major and 
minor. 
 
Collector Streets.  Streets designated as Collector Streets on the Map are intended to 
provide for traffic movement between Arterial and Local Streets.  Center left-turn lanes 
should be provided where possible to allow for greater access to adjacent uses.  
Driveway accesses should be evenly spaced.  Collectors also have two categories: 
major and minor. 
 
Local Streets.  Streets designated as Local Streets on the Map (not all shown) are 
intended to provide for direct access to abutting land uses as needed and for local traffic 
movement. 
 

 
TRANSPORTATION GUIDELINES 
 
The following transportation guidelines should be followed throughout the City: 
 
1. Land use and transportation planning should be coordinated to maximize the 

development opportunities created by major transportation routes and interchanges 
within and around Clearfield. 

 
2. Arterial Streets should be protected from encroachment resulting from improper access 

to adjacent land uses. 
 
3. An adequate thoroughfare system should be designed within future growth areas and 

sufficient rights-of-way should be designated prior to land development or through the 
plan approval process. 

 
4. There should be adequate access to and around commercial and manufacturing areas, 

public facilities, and other activity centers. 
 
5. Localized traffic congestion and operational  problems should be minimized and 

mitigated as much as possible. 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 19 

6. All roadways in the community should have properly designed surfaces with drainage 
facilities which are maintained in adequate condition. 

 
7. The overall design and appearance of roadways within the community should be 

improved.  
 
8. Transportation facilities should be designed and developed in harmony with the natural 

environment and with respect to adjacent land uses such as schools, churches, libraries, 
and other public facilities. 

 
9. Non-local and commercial traffic should be minimized within residential neighborhoods. 
 
10. Adequate off-street parking facilities should be provided for all activity centers. 
 
11. Safe and convenient bicycle and pedestrian movement should be provided. 
 
12. The City should continue to provide for alternative modes of transportation, including the 

integration of the UTA Frontrunner Rail Stop into the City’s overall transportation plan.   
 
13. Efforts should be made to provide for the safe and efficient movement of trucks and 

service vehicles within the community in a manner that does not adversely affect nearby 
land uses. 

 
14. Pedestrian signals should be provided only at vehicular signal locations.  Crosswalks 

should be restricted to intersections. 
 
15. Street lighting should be consistent with the intensity of adjacent land uses, aesthetics, 

and the need for public safety. 
 
16. Streets in developing areas should provide for the free flow of traffic when the 

construction is complete. 
 
17. Existing streets should be upgraded to minimize congestion. Where congestion can be 

attributed to new construction, needed improvements should be the responsibility of the 
developer. 

 
18. Street classification should be determined by projected traffic volumes, desired operation 

speeds, projected traffic types, projected construction phasing, and location.   
 
19. Intersections should be located at intervals which maximize street capacities and provide 

necessary access.  Traffic signals should be installed as needed. 
 
20. The demands generated by private development should be equal to its participation in 

street system improvements through the payment of impact fees, the dedication of land, 
and the construction of necessary facilities. 

 
21.  Sidewalks should be provided in all commercial and residential areas.   
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 20 

22.  The City should continue to work in a cooperative manner with other governmental 
 agencies and organizations in the planning and construction of transportation 
infrastructure  that benefits City residents.  
 
23.  Safe and efficient transportation routes should be provided to and from commonly used 
 public facilities such as parks, schools, libraries, and churches.    
 
GOALS AND POLICIES OF THE TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT: 
 
 
Goal 1:  To preserve, enhance, and beautify the City’s main transportation 

corridors. 
 
Policy:  Promote the preservation, enhancement and beautification of State Street, North 

Main Street, 700 South, 200 South, 1700 South, 300 North, and 800 North. 
 

Implementation Measure #1: Implement the D-R Downtown Redevelopment 
Zone to improve the appearance of the City’s main transportation corridors.  
Adhere to strict application of design standards in the main transportation 
corridors. 
 
Implementation Measure #2: Work with developers to encourage high-quality, 
attractive development at the main entrances to the City. 

 
 
Goal 2:  Facilitate the construction of the extension of State Highway 193 (700 S. / 

200 S. corridor). 
 
Policy:  Aid and encourage the development of the State Highway 193 extension.  
 

Implementation Measure #1: Pursue state and local funding for necessary 
environmental and engineering studies for the road. 

 
Implementation Measure #2: Pursue state and local funding to begin construction 
of the road. 
 
 

Goal 3:  Promote the development of alternative modes of transportation 
throughout the City and to the Salt Lake and Ogden metropolitan areas. 

 
Policy:  Encourage the development of opportunities for alternative modes of 

transportation between Clearfield and the Salt Lake and Ogden metropolitan 
areas. 

 
Implementation Measure #1: Take advantage of existing infrastructure such as 
streets, highways, and railroads to allow for alternative modes of transportation. 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 21 

Implementation Measure #2: Facilitate the construction of the commuter rail 
platform and associated site improvements. 

 
Goal 4:  Improve the City’s existing transportation infrastructure. 
 
Policy:  Improve, maintain, and repair the City’s existing streets and trails.   
 

Implementation Measure #1: Maximize available resources to repair and 
maintain in good condition the City’s streets and trails.  
 
Implementation Measure #2: Update the City’s Capital Facilities Plan for streets. 
 

 
 
Goal 5:  Make Clearfield more pedestrian-friendly. 
 
Policy:  Encourage the development of trails and walkable areas in the City.   
 

Implementation Measure #1: Encourage site planning methods that result in 
pedestrian connectivity between developed areas.   
 
Implementation Measure #2: Preserve adequate space for future trail corridors 
where appropriate. 

 
Implementation Measure #3: Plan for crosswalks at intersections, avoiding 
unsafe mid-block crossings.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 22 

CHAPTER 4 – AFFORDABLE HOUSING ELEMENT 
 

In 1996 the Utah State Legislature passed H.B. 295 - "Providing Affordable Housing," which 
states that "the availability of moderate income housing is an issue of statewide concern.”  The 
Legislature mandated that every municipality must provide an opportunity for all types of 
housing, including moderate income housing, to meet the needs of all people desiring to live in 
a particular community.  
 
The Legislature required all municipalities in the State to complete the Utah Affordable Housing 
Study by Dec. 31, 1998, to determine the affordable housing needs in each municipality.  
Affordable housing is defined as housing that can be occupied by persons whose household 
income is 80% or less than the county or regional median income without undue cost burdens. 
Housing is considered to be affordable when a household pays less than 30% of its gross 
monthly income (GMI) for housing, including taxes and insurance. 
 
Current data show that almost more than 55% of the City’s housing stock is considered 
affordable.  According to the 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 
(census.gov), of the 9,702 households in Clearfield, 5,302 (55%) have an income of less than 
$50,000 (72.3% of the Davis County area median—$69,147).  A reasonable estimate of the 
number of Clearfield households at or below 80% ($55,318) of the area median income is 59%.   
 
There are still approximately five acres of undeveloped high-density residential property in the 
City; therefore, current policy is that no additional property will be rezoned for the development 
of two-family or multi-family dwellings, except as part of an approved R-3R, MU, C-R, or D-R 
Zone project, until new Census data becomes available and the study can be updated 
accordingly.   
 
Figure 4.1 below shows affordable housing data for Clearfield from the 2000 Census: 



 
CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN  2010 23 

 
Source: http://www.envisionutah.org/resourcesfiles/31/2003%20Housing%20Affordability%20Study.pdf  

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Comment [JA1]: Delete table 



 
CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
#8 

 
   
TO:    Mayor Wood and City Council members 
 
FROM:  JJ Allen 
   Assistant City Manager 
   jj.allen@clearfieldcity.org (801) 525-2788 
 

 
MEETING DATE: October 8, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, discussion and possible action on FSP 1307-0004, a 

request by Mark Thayne, on behalf of Evergreen Holding, LLC, for a final 
subdivision plat to subdivide a combined acreage of 6.91 acres into two 
phases with a total of 27 lots that will be known as the Jon’s Park 
Subdivision Phase 1 and Phase 2. The site is located in the vicinity of 125 
North and 150 North Pacific Avenue and is currently zoned R-1-Open 
(Residential). 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

After the public hearing, move to approve as conditioned FSP 1307-0004, a Final 
Subdivision Plat known as Jon’s Park (Phase 1 and Phase 2), based on the discussion and 
findings provided in the Staff Report. 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 

 
 

 
  

Project Information 
Project Name Jon’s Park 
Site Location Vicinity of 125 North and 150 North Pacific Avenue 

Applicant  Mark Thayne 
Evergreen Holding, LLC 

Proposed Actions Preliminary Subdivision Plat 
Final Subdivision Plat 

Current Zoning R1-O (Open)  
Land Use Classification Residential 
Gross Site Area  6.91 acres  
     Number of lots 27 lots 

mailto:jj.allen@clearfieldcity.org


FSP 1307-0004 Jon’s Park Subdivision Plat 
8 OCTOBER 2013 CC Meeting 

 - 2 of 4 - 

 

 
 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Background 
Jon’s Park subdivision had previously obtained approvals, most recently by City Council on April 
22, 2010, but the final plat was never recorded, and pursuant to 12-7-5 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance, the approvals have subsequently expired.  A development agreement was executed 
on June 29, 2010, and it does impact the development of the property as discussed in further 
detail in the report. 
 
On September 4, 2013, the Clearfield City Planning Commission approved (with the same 
conditions described later in this staff report) the resubmitted Preliminary Subdivision Plat, and 
recommended that the City Council approve the Final Subdivision Plat. 
 
 
Master Plan and Zoning  
The parcels are master planned residential.  The zoning is R1-Open, which although is a zoning 
established through a development agreement, it has similar characteristics of R1-6, which is a 
single-family residential zone with lots a minimum of 6,000 square feet in size. The subdivision 
consists of 27 lots on 6.91 acres which is a density of approximately 3.9 DU/acre.  Under R1-
Open, a minimum of 5% open space is required. 
 
   
Subdivision Plat Approval 
Although deficiencies were identified in the technical review regarding lot standards, specifically 
that the configuration of Lots 206 and Lots 207 did not meet 12-10-2(B), the situation had 
apparently been contemplated by the previous Development Agreement.  Unique standards 

Surrounding Properties and Uses: Current Zoning District Comprehensive Plan  
Land Use Classification 

North Pacific Park Subdivision R1-O (Open Residential) Residential 

East 
 
Frontrunner and Union 
Pacific Railroad Lines 
 

N/A N/A 

South     
 
Existing Residential 
Subdivision 
 

R1-8 (Single Family 
Residential) Residential 

West Existing Residential 
Subdivision 

 
R-3 (SP) Multiple Family 

Residential/Special Purpose 
Overlay and  R1-8 (Single 

Family Residential) 
 

Residential 



FSP 1307-0004 Jon’s Park Subdivision Plat 
8 OCTOBER 2013 CC Meeting 

 - 3 of 4 - 

were specifically identified for those lots, including the orientation of the home, and that the 
driveway would be a shared driveway between the two lots. 
 
Also in the technical review, the open space was identified as exceeding 30% slopes, which has 
subsequently been revised to not have slopes greater than 30%.  Although the open space has 
limited access from the lots and predominantly serves as the development’s storm water 
detention, it does contain the minimum square feet outside of the detention areas and has 
slopes not greater than 30% and meets the minimum 5% of open space required.   
 
In addition, the City Engineer identified that the crown of the road (Pacific Street) should be 
shifted so as to be located in the middle of road.  However, through further discussions, staff 
has agreed that the crown shift should occur at the time that the City improves Pacific Street as 
a whole, and should be the City’s responsibility.  Also, the City’s standard for paving has 
changed since the original Development Agreement, and the City would be in support of 
reimbursing the developer for the difference in cost between installing a chip seal (with a fog 
coat material) versus the slurry seal described in the original Development Agreement. An 
addendum to the Development Agreement has been prepared to incorporate these and other 
items, and should be executed prior to final plat recordation. 
 
Development Agreement 
Other items discussed in the development agreement are the following: 

 Minimum construction standards and materials of the homes to be built 
 The development of the flag lots located in the subdivision 
 Minimum landscaping requirements to be provided in the Open Space parcels 
 Proposed fencing locations and material 
 Required road improvements 
 Improvements eligible for reimbursement by the City  

 
Public Comment 
A couple of residents to the west voiced some concern over drainage impacting their properties 
and maintenance of the open spaces.  The applicant has met with at least one of these parties, 
and the concerns appear to have been addressed. 
 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

 
1) The final engineering design (Improvement Plans) shall meet City standards and be to 

the satisfaction of the City Engineer, by meeting the requirements set forth in the letter 
dated August 22, 2013.  However, the crown shift will no longer be required. 
 

2) An amended development agreement to incorporate a new final plat, introducing the 
option for an assessment area instead of an HOA, and to address the road 
improvement material and items to be escrowed for shall be executed prior to final plat 
recordation. 
 

3) Pursuant to the Subdivision Ordinance 12-4-5, an estimate of public improvements (as 
outlined in 12-4-6), shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the City Engineer 
prior to obtaining building permits. An Escrow agreement will be subject to approval by 



FSP 1307-0004 Jon’s Park Subdivision Plat 
8 OCTOBER 2013 CC Meeting 

 - 4 of 4 - 

the City Engineer and City Attorney and an escrow account shall be established prior 
to recordation of the Final Plat. 

 
4) Either a Homeowners’ Association (HOA) or an assessment area shall be in place and 

recorded against the properties prior to the issuance of any building permits.  If an 
HOA, declarations and any necessary CC&Rs shall be recorded at the time of final 
plat recordation, and the HOA shall be responsible for all maintenance of the 
development’s open space.  Likewise, if an assessment area is selected as the 
preferred approach, it must be in place at the time of final plat recordation. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Jon’s Park Final Plat 
2. Development Agreement, June 29, 2010 
3. Proposed Addendum #1 to Development Agreement 
4. Engineer Review Letter, dated August 22, 2013 

 
 

 



























ADDENDUM NO. 1 
to 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
between 

CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
and 

EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC. 
 

PURPOSE:  This Addendum amends the development agreement between Clearfield City Corporation 
(“City”) and Evergreen Holding, LLC (“Developer”), dated June 29, 2010 (“Agreement”), setting forth 
specific terms and conditions regarding the development of and construction on certain property known as 
the Jon’s Park Subdivision, Phases 1 & 2, located in Clearfield, Utah. 
 
The Agreement referenced above is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 
A. Exhibit “A” shall be replaced and superseded by the 2013 Plats and Improvement Drawings 

attached to this Addendum as Exhibit “B.” 
 

B. Section 1. j. shall be amended to read as follows:  “Parcels A and B shall be fully landscaped 
by the Developer.  The landscaping shall consist of sod and a minimum of three trees per 
Parcel, each with a caliper of no less than two inches (2”).  An automatic sprinkler system 
shall be installed for both Parcels.  Parcel A shall also contain a twenty foot (20’) wide access 
between lots 108 and 109, and a four foot (4’) wide path and park bench as shown in Exhibit 
“A.”  The Developer shall establish either a homeowners’ association or an assessment area 
to provide for the ownership and maintenance of open space Parcels A and B.  The 
association or assessment area shall include all of the lots shown on the Final Plats.  In the 
event that the homeowners’ association fails to maintain the open space areas, the City shall 
have the right, but not the obligation, to perform said maintenance and bill any costs 
associated therewith (including administrative overhead) to the Property owners.” 
 

C. Section 1. m. shall be amended to read as follows:  “Prior to any building permit being 
issued, the Developer shall provide the City with funds to cover the estimated current costs 
(less $5,000), as approved by the Clearfield City Engineer, for installing: i) a complete 1.5” 
overlay of Pacific Street from the north side of lot 213, southward to and including the cul-
de-sac on the north side of the Center Street bridge; and ii) curb and gutter on the east side of 
Pacific Street from the north side of lot 213, southward to the end of the cul-de-sac on the 
north side of the Center Street bridge, and to upgrade the storm water piping and box in the 
cul-de sac.” 

 
D. Section 1. n. shall be stricken in its entirety. 

 
E. Section 1. p. shall be amended to read as follows:  “The Developer shall install a chip seal as 

per City standards on the entire width of 300 West from the north side of 90 North Street 
(including the full cul-de-sac) to the south side of 25 South Street, following construction of 
the new sanitary sewer and storm drain.  The City shall reimburse to the Developer the 
difference in cost between chip seal and Type 3 slurry seal.” 

 
 
Per this Addendum, the Parties hereby amend the Agreement dated June 29, 2010 as set forth above this 
 
 _______ day of October, 2013. 



2 
 

 
 
CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION   EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________  
Donald W. Wood, Mayor    Neil Wall, Manager  
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    
 
 
_________________________________   
Community Development Director    
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    
 
 
_________________________________   
Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
_________________________________   
City Attorney’s Office 
 
 
 

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF UTAH  ) 

§ 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
 
On the _____ day of _________________________, 2013 personally appeared before me, ???, as signer 
of the foregoing document, who duly acknowledged to me that he has corporate authority on behalf of 
Evergreen Holding, LLC to execute the same. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
Residing: ________________________ 

 



 
             

 
5141 South 1500 West 

Riverdale City, Utah 84405 
801-866-0550 

 

22 August 2013 
 
 
Clearfield City 
55 South State Street 
Clearfield City, Utah 84015 
 
Attn: JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager    

Proj: Jon’s Park Subdivision – Phase No.1 and Phase No.2 
Subj: Plat and Improvement Drawings Review 
 
 
Dear JJ, 
 
I have reviewed the above referenced Subdivision Plat’s and Improvement Drawings per the 
request of your office find two (2) minor outstanding corrections that still need to be 
addressed.  The two (2) outstanding correction items were discussed at the review meeting 
on the 19th of August with the Developer & his Engineer.   
 
I have spoken with Scott Hodge and we still feel that the two (2) items listed below are 
needed to be corrected in the improvement drawings prior to final approval from our office.   
 
 
General Comments: 

 
1. An electronic copy of the improvement drawings and the Plat must be submitted to 

our office upon design completion and with final approval.  We intend to hold our 
signature from the Plat’s until all drawings have been submitted from the developer 
for record keeping by the City. 

 
 
Improvement Drawings – Outstanding Corrections 
 

1. The roadway cross-section improvements (roadbase and bituminous asphalt 
surfacing) along Pacific Avenue need to be designed with the crown in the center of 
the roadway and not be constructed with an offset crown. 

 



 
 

2. The roadway surface improvements for 300 West Street should be changed to reflect 
the installation of a chip seal with a fog coat material following installation of the 
storm drainage pipe and the asphalt patching. 

 
 
 
If you have, any questions feel free to contact our office. 
Sincerely, 
 
CEC, Civil Engineering Consultants, PLLC. 

 
N. Scott Nelson, PE. 
City Engineer 
 
 
 
Cc.  Scott Hodge, Public Works Director 
 Valerie Claussen, Contract Planner 

   



CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2013-08 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 1, CHAPTER 7 OF THE 

CLEARFIELD CITY CODE BY ADDING SECTION 10, ESTABLISHING A 

MUNICIPAL ETHICS COMMISSION; PROVIDING FOR THE 

MEMBERSHIP THEREOF PURSUANT TO AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT; ESTABLISHING THE PROCESS FOR THE FILING OF A 

COMPLAINT, THE INVESTIGATION, AND HEARING PROCESSES 

THEREFOR; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Utah State Legislature has enacted a State law establishing a Political 

Subdivision Ethics Commission to review complaints regarding the activities of certain elected and 

appointed officials; and 

WHEREAS, the State law permits a political subdivision to establish its own ethics 

commission to address the applicable complaints; and 

WHEREAS, in reviewing this option, Clearfield City has determined that it is in the best 

interest of its citizenry to have its own commission, being more convenient, responsive, and 

accessible to the citizenry; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that determination, the Council finds that it is in the best interest of 

Clearfield City and its citizens to establish its own ethics commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL:  

SECTION I:  Repealer.  If any provisions of the City's Code previously adopted are 

inconsistent herewith they are hereby repealed. 

SECTION II:  Enactment.  Title 1, Chapter 7, of the Clearfield City Code is hereby 

amended by the addition of Section 10 to read as follows: 

 

1-7-10:  MUNICIPAL ETHICS COMMISSION 

 

A. Purpose.  The purpose of this Section is to prevent improper influence, avoid the appearance 

of impropriety, and prohibit elected and appointed officials from receiving unjust financial 

gain from public service.  It also seeks to increase public confidence by assuring that 

governmental actions are taken ethically. 

 

B. Definitions. 

 (1) For the purposes of this Section, "Commission" means the Municipal Ethics 

Commission formed pursuant to § 1-7-10 (E) below. 

 (2) For the purposes of this Section, "elected officials" includes only the members of the 

Clearfield City Council and its Mayor. 

 (3) For the purposes of this Section, "appointed official" means the City Manager or 

similar non-elected chief executive officer. 



2 
 

 

C. Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act. 

 (1) Elected and appointed officials of Clearfield City are required to comply with the 

Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act (Title 10, Chapter 3, Part 13 of the Utah Code) as 

amended, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

 (2) Included in the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act is the obligation of 

elected and appointed officials to: 

  (a) Not disclose or improperly use private, controlled, or protected information 

acquired by them by reason of their position or in the course of their duties in order to further 

substantially their personal economic interest or to secure special privileges or exemptions for the 

elected or appointed official or others; and avoid the use of their office for personal benefit; 

  (b) Not use or attempt to use their position to further substantially their personal 

economic interest or secure special privileges for the elected or appointed official or for others; 

  (c) Not knowingly receive, accept, take, seek, or solicit, directly or indirectly, for 

the elected or appointed official or for another, a gift of substantial value or a substantial economic 

benefit tantamount to a gift that: 

   (i) would tend improperly to influence a reasonable person in the elected 

or appointed official's position to depart from the faithful and impartial discharge of the person's 

public duty; or 

   (ii) the elected or appointed official knows or that a reasonable person in 

that position should know under the circumstances is primarily for the purpose of rewarding the 

elected or appointed official for official action taken. 

  (d) The Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act also requires public 

disclosures and filings in certain circumstances as described in the Act, including: 

   (i) Where an elected or appointed official receives or agrees to receive 

compensation for assisting any person or business entity in any transaction involving Clearfield City; 

   (ii) Where an elected or appointed official is an officer, director, agent, or 

employee or the owner of a substantial interest in any business entity which is subject to regulation 

by Clearfield City; 

   (iii) Where the elected or appointed official is an officer, director, agent, 

employee, or owner of a substantial interest in any business entity which does or anticipates doing 

business with Clearfield City; and  

   (iv) Where an elected or appointed official has a personal interest or 

investment which creates a conflict between the elected or appointed official's personal interests and 

the elected or appointed official's public duties. 

 

D. City Attorney advisory opinions. 

 (1) Elected and appointed officials of Clearfield City may request of the City Attorney an 

advisory opinion concerning the application of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act.  

The City Attorney shall accept and process these advisory opinion requests.  As soon as practicable, 

but not later than thirty (30) days after the City Attorney receives a request for an advisory opinion, 

the City Attorney shall render a written opinion to the Mayor, City Council,  and to the City 

Manager.  All advisory opinions shall be available for public review, but may be in such form and 

with such deletions as may be necessary to prevent the disclosure of the identity of the persons 

involved or to protect personal privacy interests. 



3 
 

 (2) An advisory opinion rendered by the City Attorney, until amended or revoked by the 

City Attorney, shall be a defense in any action brought by a complainant against the elected or 

appointed official and shall be binding on the City in any subsequent proceedings concerning the 

person who requested the opinion and who acted in good faith upon it, unless material facts were 

omitted or misstated by the person requesting the opinion. 

 

E. Municipal Ethics Commission. 

 (1) Clearfield City establishes a Municipal Ethics Commission pursuant to Utah Code 

Ann. § 10-3-1311, and § 11-49-103.  The Commission is a three (3) person Commission as provided 

for in an Interlocal Agreement between Clearfield City and other participating municipalities.  Upon 

receiving a complaint the membership of the Commission shall be determined by random selection 

from the pool of eligible participating municipalities. 

 (2) The Office of the City Attorney shall provide the Commission such administrative or 

other support, as requested by the Commission. 

 

F. Filing of ethics complaints with Commission. 

 (1) A complaint may only be filed with the Commission under the following conditions: 

  (a) The complaint must be against an elected or appointed official of Clearfield 

City who is currently serving in their elected or appointed position and allege a violation of the 

Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act; 

  (b) The complaint must be filed with the City Recorder of Clearfield City on 

behalf of the Commission; 

  (c) The complaint must be made by either: 

   (i) two or more registered voters who reside within the boundaries of 

Clearfield City; or  

   (ii) two or more registered voters who pay a fee or tax to Clearfield City; 

or  

   (iii) one or more registered voters who reside within the boundaries of 

Clearfield City plus one or more registered voters who pay a fee or tax to Clearfield City; 

  (d) The complaint must be based upon direct evidence or sworn statements by one 

or more people with actual knowledge of the facts and circumstances supporting the alleged ethics 

violation; 

  (e) The complaint may not be filed during the sixty (60) calendar days 

immediately before a municipal primary election, if the accused elected or appointed official is a 

candidate in the primary election; 

  (f) The complaint may not be filed during the sixty (60) calendar days 

immediately before a municipal general election in which the accused elected or appointed official is 

a candidate, unless the accused elected or appointed official is unopposed in the election; 

  (g) The complaint must be in writing and contain: 

   (i) the name and position of the elected or appointed official alleged to be 

in violation; 

   (ii) the name, address, and telephone number of each individual who is 

filing the complaint; 

   (iii) a description of each alleged violation of the Municipal Officers' and 

Employees' Ethics Act, including a reference to the section of the Act alleged to have been violated; 



4 
 

   (iv) with reasonable specificity, evidence supporting each allegation, which 

shall be provided by copies of official records, documentary evidence, or affidavits that include the 

required information; 

   (v) a list of witnesses that a complainant wishes to have called or 

interviewed, including for each witness: the name, address, and, if available, one or more telephone 

numbers of the witness; a brief summary of the testimony to be provided by the witness; a specific 

description of any documents or evidence a complainant desires the witness to produce; 

   (vi)  a statement that each complainant:  

    (A) has reviewed the allegations contained in the complaint and the 

sworn statements and documents attached to the complaint;  

    (B) believes that the complaint is submitted in good faith and not 

for any improper purpose such as harassing the named elected or appointed official, causing 

unwarranted harm to the accused elected or appointed official's reputation, or causing unnecessary 

expenditure of public funds; and  

    (C) believes the allegations contained in the complaint to be true 

and accurate. 

   (vii) a statement with the signature of each complainant. 

 (2) Upon receipt of any ethics complaint, the City Recorder shall immediately refer the 

complaint to the Commission.  The City Recorder shall not notify or inform any other person of the 

filing of the complaint. 

 (3) A person filing a complaint under this Chapter is not entitled to reimbursement for 

attorney fees or costs incurred, regardless of the outcome of the proceedings. 

 

G. Privacy. 

 (1) Once an ethics complaint has been filed with the City Recorder, neither the City 

Recorder, the Commission, nor any City employee may disclose the existence of the complaint, any 

response to the complaint, or any information concerning the alleged ethics violation that is the 

subject of the complaint, unless otherwise provided in this Chapter. 

 (2) Nothing in the restrictions above may be construed to hinder or prevent a person or 

the City Attorney of Clearfield from disclosing the facts or allegations about potential criminal 

violations to a law enforcement authority. 

 (3) Nothing in this Section may be construed to hinder or prevent the named elected or 

appointed official from preparing a defense to a complaint, including contacting witnesses or taking 

other actions in preparation for review by the Commission. 

 (4) Nothing in this Section may be construed to hinder or prevent any person from 

disclosing public records. 

 (5) If any employee or official of the City publicly discloses any private information, 

appropriate disciplinary action may be taken against such individual. 

 (6) If a complainant publicly discloses any private records or information obtained from 

private records, the Commission may summarily dismiss the complaint without prejudice. 

 (7) All records, that are not public records, received by or generated by or for the 

Commission are private and not subject to disclosure or release, except for the Commission's 

summary findings and recommendation for the City Council or any document that is classified as 

public in accordance with Title 11, Chapter 49 of the Utah Code (Utah Code § 63G-1-302). 

 



5 
 

H. Initial review of complaint. 

 (1) Within ten (10) business days after receipt of an ethics complaint, the Commission 

shall examine the complaint to determine if it is in compliance with the filing requirements of this 

Chapter. 

 (2) If the Commission determines that the complaint does not comply with the filing 

requirements of this Chapter, the Commission shall return the complaint to the first complainant 

named on the complaint with a statement detailing the reason(s) for non-compliance.  At the same 

time, the Commission shall notify the City Manager, Mayor, City Council, and the City Attorney that 

a complaint filed against an unidentified elected or appointed official has been returned for non-

compliance with this Chapter and the fact that a complaint was filed and returned shall be kept 

confidential until the Commission submits its annual summary report to the City Council and to the 

Mayor.  If a complaint is returned by the Commission, the complainants may file another complaint 

if the new complaint independently meets the filing requirements of this Chapter. 

 (3) If the Commission determines that the complaint complies with the filing 

requirements of this Chapter, the Commission shall: 

  (a) Accept the complaint; 

  (b) Promptly forward the complaint to the elected or appointed official who is 

named in the complaint, together with directions for providing a response to the Commission; 

  (c) If appropriate, request assistance from the Office of the City Attorney; and 

  (d) Notify the complainants, the named elected or appointed official, the City 

Recorder, and the employees in the Office of the City Attorney of the privacy requirements of this 

Chapter. 

 (4) At its discretion, the Commission may determine whether the subject of the complaint 

should be investigated by a law enforcement agency. 

 (5) If the Commission learns that the subject of the complaint is under criminal 

investigation, the Commission may suspend its review of the complaint pending the resolution of the 

criminal investigation. 

 (6) The named elected or appointed official shall have the right to present an answer to 

the complaint.  The answer may contain statements, arguments, and evidence.  The answer must be 

filed within ten (10) business days from the date the complaint was forwarded to and received by the 

elected or appointed official. 

 (7) The Commission shall dismiss an ethics complaint if: 

  (a) The named elected or appointed official resigns or is removed from office 

with Clearfield City;  

  (b) The named elected or appointed official is charged with a criminal violation of 

the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act where the facts and allegations presented in the 

ethics complaint assert substantially similar facts and allegations as those asserted in the criminal 

charges; or 

  (c) The allegations in the complaint, if assumed to be true, do not state a violation 

of the Municipal Officer's and Employees' Ethics Act. 

 

I. Consideration of complaint after acceptance. 

 (1) After acceptance of a complaint, the Commission has the discretion to: 

  (a) Conduct a confidential, independent administrative investigation of the 

complaint; 



6 
 

  (b) Refer the matter to an independent non-criminal investigator for fact finding 

and investigation and consider the confidential report of the investigator; 

  (c) Conduct a hearing in accordance with Subsection (2) of this Section; or 

  (d) Any combination of the above. 

 (2) If the Commission uses a hearing to review the complaint, the Commission shall: 

  (a) Assure that the hearing includes opening arguments, presentation of evidence, 

witnesses and rebuttal, consideration of motions, and closing arguments; 

  (b) Close the hearing to the public; 

  (c) Allow the complainants and the named elected or appointed official to retain 

legal representation, at their discretion; and 

  (d) Provide administrative subpoenas pursuant to its subpoena powers. 

 (3) For any hearing the Commission must provide a notice to the first named complainant 

and the named elected or appointed official at least five (5) business days prior to the hearing. 

 (4) The Commission shall determine whether the subject matter of the complaint was 

previously the subject of a filing, public disclosure, or a City Attorney ethics advisory opinion.  The 

Commission shall take into consideration efforts by the named elected or appointed official to seek 

legal direction regarding the subject matter of the complaint and any good faith efforts by the named 

elected or appointed official in response to legal advice received. 

 (5) The Commission shall ensure that a record of any Commission meeting or hearing is 

made, which shall include:  

  (a) Audio recordings, if any; 

  (b) Official summaries or minutes taken during the meeting or hearing; 

  (c) Copies of all documents or other items admitted into evidence or considered 

by the Commission; 

  (d) Copies of a document or written order or ruling issued by the Commission; 

and 

  (e) Any other information the Commission deems relevant to the findings and 

recommendation. 

 

J. Contempt powers. 

 (1) The Commission may hold a person in contempt if the person: 

  (a) Refuses to answer a question, without legal justification, after being directed 

by the Commission to answer; or 

  (b) Fails to comply with a subpoena issued by the Commission. 

 (2) Upon finding a person in contempt, the Commission shall report the person to the 

Second District Court and request a warrant of attachment or order to show cause, as provided in 

Utah Code Ann. § 78B-6-313. 

 

K. Request by elected or appointed official for legal representation. 

 (1) The named elected or appointed official may request that the City provide a legal 

defense if the complaint arises from an act or omission during the performance of official duties, 

within the scope of employment, or under the color of authority. 

 (2) The City Attorney may arrange for such legal defense, where appropriate. 

 

 



7 
 

L. Determination by Commission. 

 (1) After review of the complaint, the Commission shall determine whether there is clear 

and convincing evidence supporting a violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Act by the 

named elected or appointed official.  If there are multiple alleged violations the Commission shall 

separately determine whether clear and convincing evidence supports each violation.  The 

determination shall be by majority vote of the Commission. 

 (2) If the Commission determines that no allegations in the complaint were proved, the 

Commission shall: 

  (a) Issue an order that the complaint is dismissed because no allegations in the 

complaint were found to have been proven; 

  (b) Provide notice of the determination of an unidentified elected or appointed 

official at a regular public meeting of the City Council; and 

  (c) Provide written notice of the determination to the named elected or appointed 

official and the first named complainant on the complaint. 

 (3) If the Commission determines that one or more of the allegations in the complaint 

were proved, the Commission shall: 

  (a) Prepare written summary findings and a recommendation for the City Council: 

   (i) Listing the name of each complainant and the name of the subject 

elected or appointed official; 

   (ii) For each allegation that was proven: 

    (A) Provide the reference to the Municipal Officers' and 

Employees' Act; 

    (B) Summarize the evidence supporting a violation by clear and 

convincing evidence; 

    (C) Make factual findings; and 

   (iii) Recommend appropriate action to the City Council. 

  (b) Notify the named elected or appointed official and the first complainant on the 

complaint of the written summary findings and recommendation for the City Council; and 

  (c) Orally report the summary findings and recommendation to the City Council 

in a regular meeting of the City Council. 

 (4) If the Commission finds a violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics 

Act, the Commission may recommend to the City Council any appropriate action or remedy, 

including but not limited to censor, reprimand, additional ethics training, or removal from office.  

The Commission's recommendation may depend on the severity of the violation, the elected or 

appointed official's intent, any history or pattern of abuse by the named elected or appointed official, 

and any economic or other benefit received by the named elected or appointed official. 

 

M. Action by City Council. 

 (1) Upon receipt of any finding and recommendation by the Commission, the City 

Council shall review the recommendation and take action at its discretion. 

 (2) The elected or appointed official referred for a violation may not participate in the 

Council's deliberation or cast a vote as the Council decides whether to take action and which action 

to take. 

 

 



8 
 

N. Knowingly filing of false complaint. 

 Any person who files a complaint against an elected or appointed official pursuant to this 

Chapter, knowing that such complaint is frivolous, malicious, false, or otherwise without merit, shall 

be guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 

 

O. Annual Commission report. 

 (1) If there has been any activity by the Commission during the previous years the 

Commission shall prepare, on an annual basis, a summary report that contains: 

  (a) A general description of the activities of the Commission during the past year; 

  (b) The number of ethics complaints filed with the Commission; 

  (c) The number of ethics complaints dismissed; and 

  (d) An executive summary of each complaint where the Commission found a 

violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act. 

 (2) The annual report of the Commission shall be filed with the Mayor, City Council, and 

with the City Manager and shall be a public record. 

 

SECTION III:  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, said portion 

shall be severed and such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION IV:  Effective Date.  This ordinance being necessary for the peace, health, and 

safety of the City, shall become effective immediately upon posting. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Clearfield City Council this 8
th

 day of October, 2013. 

ATTEST:      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

_________________________   _________________________ 

Nancy Dean, City Recorder    Don Wood, Mayor 

 

 

 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 

 

 AYE:   

 

 NAY: 

 

 EXCUSED:  

 



CLEARFIELD CITY RESOLUTION 2013R-17 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN BOUNTIFUL CITY, CLEARFIELD CITY, LAYTON CITY 

AND ROY CITY FOR THE CREATION OF AN ETHICS COMMISSION 

AS PROVIDED BY STATE LAW 

 

WHEREAS, Bountiful City (Bountiful), Clearfield City (Clearfield), Layton City (Layton), 

and Roy City (Roy), are all public agencies within the State of Utah and may enter into interlocal 

cooperation agreements pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 13 of the Utah 

Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, these cities desire to jointly exercise their authority in a manner that is mutually 

beneficial and economical for each entity and its citizenry; and 

 

 WHEREAS, State law provides for the creation of a local ethics commission to review any 

complaints regarding the actions of a local entity's elected officials and any appointed executive 

officer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the creation of this commission will provide for independent and knowledgeable 

members with an understanding of the State's Ethics Act, the laws regarding conflict of interest, and 

the applicable administrative processes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the attached interlocal cooperation agreement provides for the membership of 

the local ethics commission, its processes, and provides for a term of the agreement as well as the 

termination of this agreement. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Clearfield City Council that the attached 

Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between Bountiful City, Clearfield City, Layton City and Roy City 

for the creation of an Ethics Commission as provided by State Law is hereby approved and the 

Mayor is duly authorized to execute the agreement with an effective date of July 1, 2013. 

 

Passed and adopted by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 9
th

 day of July, 2013. 

 

ATTEST:     CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION: 

 

 

__________________________  ______________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder  Donald W. Wood, Mayor 

 

 

 VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  

 



 

1 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

BOUNTIFUL CITY, CLEARFIELD CITY, LAYTON CITY, 

AND ROY CITY FOR THE CREATION OF AN 

ETHICS COMMISSION AS PROVIDED FOR BY STATE LAW 
 

 WHEREAS, Bountiful City (Bountiful), Clearfield City (Clearfield), Layton City 

(Layton), and Roy City (Roy), are all public agencies within the State of Utah and may enter into 

interlocal cooperation agreements pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Title 11, Chapter 

13 of the Utah Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, these cities desire to jointly exercise their authority in a manner that is 

mutually beneficial and economical for each entity and its citizenry; and 

 

 WHEREAS, State law provides for the creation of a local ethics commission to review 

any complaints regarding the actions of a local entity's elected officials and any appointed 

executive officer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the creation of this commission will provide for independent and 

knowledgeable members with an understanding of the State's Ethics Act, the laws regarding 

conflict of interest, and the applicable administrative processes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this agreement provides for the membership of the local ethics commission, 

its processes, and provides for a term of the agreement as well as the termination of this 

agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this agreement is to be approved by the governing body of the respective 

cities and their legal counsel. 

 

 WITNESSETH, that Bountiful, Clearfield, Layton, and Roy, as authorized, enter into this 

interlocal agreement and agree as follows: 

 

I. LOCAL ETHICS COMMISSION 
 

 1. Authority to create.  Pursuant to §§ 11-13-1 et seq. and 11-49-103 these cities 

are authorized to enter into this agreement and to establish this commission. 

 

 2. Membership.  The commission is made of the city attorney, or designee, from 

each of the cities.  If a designee is used the city attorney will ensure that the designee is well 

versed in laws of ethics, conflicts of interest, and the applicable administration processes. 

 

 3. Membership of commission when convened.  When the commission has been 

convened upon receiving a complaint, the membership will be the three representatives other 

than the city whose official is the subject of the complaint. 

 



 

2 

 

 4. No remuneration for service.  Each member of the commission will serve 

without additional remuneration and each city agrees not to seek reimbursement against the 

others for the service of its representative and any necessary staff support. 

 

 5. Meetings.  The commission will meet for the purpose of reviewing ethics 

complaints.  At the beginning of each investigation, the commission will elect a chairperson.  It 

will be the responsibility of the chairperson to lead the investigation, provide necessary staff, 

provide a written conclusion of any investigation, and maintain the file for that investigation. 

 

 6. Powers and procedures.  The commission's processes and authority are as 

follows: 

 
  (A) Filing of ethics complaints with commission. 

   (1) A complaint may only be filed with the commission under the following 

conditions: 

    (a) The complaint must be against an elected or appointed official 

who is currently serving in that position and allege a violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' 

Ethics Act; 

    (b) The complaint must be filed with the city recorder of the 

respective city on behalf of the commission; 

    (c) The complaint must be made by either: 

     (i) two or more registered voters who reside within the 

boundaries of the respective city; or  

     (ii) two or more registered voters who pay a fee or tax to the 

respective city; or  

     (iii) one or more registered voters who reside within the 

boundaries of the respective city plus one or more registered voters who pay a fee or tax to the respective 

city; 

    (d) The complaint must be based upon direct evidence or sworn 

statements by one or more people with actual knowledge of the facts and circumstances supporting the 

alleged ethics violation; 



 

3 

 

    (e) The complaint may not be filed during the sixty (60) calendar 

days immediately before a municipal primary election, if the accused elected official is a candidate in the 

primary election; 

    (f) The complaint may not be filed during the sixty (60) calendar 

days immediately before a municipal general election in which the accused elected official is a candidate, 

unless the accused elected official is unopposed in the election; 

    (g) The complaint must be in writing and contain: 

     (i) the name and position of the elected or appointed official 

alleged to be in violation; 

     (ii) the name, address, and telephone number of each 

individual who is filing the complaint; 

     (iii) a description of each alleged violation of the Municipal 

Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act, including a reference to the section of the Act alleged to have been 

violated; 

     (iv) with reasonable specificity, evidence supporting each 

allegation, which shall be provided by copies of official records, documentary evidence, or affidavits that 

include the required information; 

     (v) a list of witnesses that a complainant wishes to have 

called or interviewed, including for each witness: the name, address, and, if available, one or more 

telephone numbers of the witness; a brief summary of the testimony to be provided by the witness; a 

specific description of any documents or evidence a complainant desires the witness to produce; 

     (vi)  a statement that each complainant:  

      (A) has reviewed the allegations contained in the 

complaint and the sworn statements and documents attached to the complaint;  

      (B) believes that the complaint is submitted in good 

faith and not for any improper purpose such as harassing the named elected or appointed official, causing 

unwarranted harm to the accused elected or appointed official's reputation, or causing unnecessary 

expenditure of public funds; and  



 

4 

 

      (C) believes the allegations contained in the 

complaint to be true and accurate. 

     (vii) a statement with the signature of each complainant. 

   (2) Upon receipt of any ethics complaint, the city recorder shall immediately 

refer the complaint to the commission.  The city recorder shall not notify or inform any other person of 

the filing of the complaint. 

   (3) A person filing a complaint under this process is not entitled to 

reimbursement for attorney fees or costs incurred, regardless of the outcome of the proceedings. 

  (B) Privacy. 

   (1) Once an ethics complaint has been filed with the city recorder, neither 

the city recorder, the commission, nor any of the city's employees may disclose the existence of the 

complaint, any response to the complaint, or any information concerning the alleged ethics violation that 

is the subject of the complaint, unless otherwise provided by law. 

   (2) Nothing in the restrictions above may be construed to hinder or prevent a 

person from disclosing the facts or allegations about potential criminal violations to a law enforcement 

authority. 

   (3) Nothing in this Section may be construed to hinder or prevent the named 

elected or appointed official from preparing a defense to a complaint, including contacting witnesses or 

taking other actions in preparation for review by the commission. 

   (4) Nothing in this section may be construed to hinder or prevent any person 

from disclosing public records. 

   (5) If any employee or official of the cities publicly discloses any private 

information, appropriate disciplinary action may be taken against such individual. 

   (6) If a complainant publicly discloses any private records or information 

obtained from private records, the commission may summarily dismiss the complaint without prejudice. 

   (7) All records received by or generated by or for the commission are private 

and not subject to disclosure or release, except for the commission's summary findings and 

recommendation for the respondent or any document that is classified as public in accordance with Title 

11, Chapter 49 of the Utah Code (Utah Code § 63G-1-302). 



 

5 

 

  (C) Initial review of complaint. 

   (1) Within ten (10) business days after receipt of an ethics complaint, the 

commission shall examine the complaint to determine if it is in compliance with the filing requirements of 

this Chapter. 

   (2) If the commission determines that the complaint does not comply with 

the filing requirements, the commission shall return the complaint to the first complainant named on the 

complaint with a statement detailing the reason(s) for non-compliance.  At the same time, the commission 

shall notify the mayor, city manager, and the city attorney that a complaint filed against an unidentified 

elected or appointed official has been returned for non-compliance and the fact that a complaint was filed 

and returned shall be kept confidential until the commission submits its annual summary report to the 

respective governing bodies and to the city managers.  If a complaint is returned by the commission, the 

complainants may file another complaint if the new complaint independently meets the filing 

requirements. 

   (3) If the commission determines that the complaint complies with the filing 

requirements, the commission shall: 

    (a) Accept the complaint; 

    (b) Promptly forward the complaint to the elected or appointed 

official who is named in the complaint, together with directions for providing a response to the 

commission; 

    (c) Notify the complainants, the named elected or appointed official, 

the city recorder, and any support staff of the commission of the privacy requirements. 

   (4) At its discretion, the commission may determine whether the subject of 

the complaint should be investigated by a law enforcement agency. 

   (5) If the commission learns that the subject of the complaint is under 

criminal investigation, the commission may suspend its review of the complaint pending the resolution of 

the criminal investigation. 

   (6) The named elected or appointed official shall have the right to present an 

answer to the complaint.  The answer may contain statements, arguments, and evidence.  The answer 

must be filed within ten (10) business days from the date the complaint was forwarded to and received by 

the elected or appointed official. 



 

6 

 

   (7) The commission shall dismiss an ethics complaint if: 

    (a) The named elected or appointed official resigns or is removed 

from office;  

    (b) The named elected or appointed official is charged with a 

criminal violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act where the facts and allegations 

presented in the ethics complaint assert substantially similar facts and allegations as those asserted in the 

criminal charges; or 

    (c) The allegations in the complaint, if assumed to be true, do not 

state a violation of the Municipal Officer's and Employees' Ethics Act. 

  (D) Consideration of complaint after acceptance. 

   (1) After acceptance of a complaint, the commission has the discretion to: 

    (a) Conduct a confidential, independent administrative investigation 

of the complaint; 

    (b) Refer the matter to an independent non-criminal investigator for 

fact finding and investigation and consider the confidential report of the investigator; 

    (c) Conduct a hearing in accordance with Subsection (2) of this 

Section; or 

    (d) Any combination of the above. 

   (2) If the commission uses a hearing to review the complaint, the 

commission shall: 

    (a) Assure that the hearing includes opening arguments, presentation 

of evidence, witnesses and rebuttal, consideration of motions, and closing arguments; 

    (b) Close the hearing to the public; 

    (c) Allow the complainants and the named elected or appointed 

official to retain legal representation, at their discretion; and 

    (d) Provide administrative subpoenas pursuant to its subpoena 

powers. 



 

7 

 

   (3) For any hearing the commission must provide a notice to the first named 

complainant and the named elected or appointed official at least five (5) business days prior to the 

hearing. 

   (4) The commission shall determine whether the subject matter of the 

complaint was previously the subject of a filing, public disclosure, or a city attorney ethics advisory 

opinion.  The commission shall take into consideration efforts by the named elected or appointed official 

to seek legal direction regarding the subject matter of the complaint and any good faith efforts by the 

named elected or appointed official in response to legal advice received. 

   (5) The commission shall ensure that a record of any commission meeting or 

hearing is made, which shall include:  

    (a) Audio recordings, if any; 

    (b) Official summaries or minutes taken during the meeting or 

hearing; 

    (c) Copies of all documents or other items admitted into evidence or 

considered by the commission; 

    (d) Copies of a document or written order or ruling issued by the 

commission; and 

    (e) Any other information the commission deems relevant to the 

findings and recommendation. 

  (E) Contempt powers. 

   (1) The commission may hold a person in contempt if the person: 

    (a) Refuses to answer a question, without legal justification, after 

being directed by the commission to answer; or 

    (b) Fails to comply with a subpoena issued by the commission. 

   (2) Upon finding a person in contempt, the commission shall report the 

person to the Second District Court and request a warrant of attachment or order to show cause, as 

provided in Utah Code § 78B-6-313. 

  (F) Request by elected or appointed official for legal representation. 



 

8 

 

   (1) The named elected or appointed official may request that their city 

provide a legal defense if the complaint arises from an act or omission during the performance of official 

duties, within the scope of employment, or under the color of authority. 

   (2) The respective city may arrange for such legal defense, where 

appropriate. 

  (G) Determination by commission. 

   (1) After review of the complaint, the commission shall determine whether 

there is clear and convincing evidence supporting a violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' 

Act by the named elected or appointed official.  If there are multiple alleged violations the commission 

shall separately determine whether clear and convincing evidence supports each violation. 

   (2) If the commission determines that no allegations in the complaint were 

proved, the commission shall: 

    (a) Issue an order that the complaint is dismissed because no 

allegations in the complaint were found to have been proven; 

    (b) Provide notice of the determination of an unidentified subject of 

a complaint (elected or appointed official) at a regular public meeting of the respective city's council; and 

    (c) Provide written notice of the determination to the named elected 

or appointed official and the first named complainant on the complaint. 

   (3) If the commission determines that one or more of the allegations in the 

complaint were proved, the commission shall: 

    (a) Prepare written summary findings and a recommendation for the 

respective city's council: 

     (i) Listing the name of each complainant and the name of 

the subject elected or appointed official; 

     (ii) For each allegation that was proven: 

      (A) Provide the reference to the Municipal Officers' 

and Employees' Act; 



 

9 

 

      (B) Summarize the evidence supporting a violation 

by clear and convincing evidence; 

      (C) Make factual findings; and 

     (iii) Recommend appropriate action to the respective city's 

council. 

    (b) Notify the named elected or appointed official and the first 

complainant on the complaint of the written summary findings and recommendation for the respective 

city's council; and 

    (c) Orally report the summary findings and recommendation to the 

respective city's council in a regular meeting of the city council. 

   (4) If the commission finds a violation of the Municipal Officers' and 

Employees' Ethics Act, the commission may recommend to the respective city's council any appropriate 

action or remedy, including but not limited to censor, reprimand, additional ethics training, or removal 

from office.  The commission's recommendation may depend on the severity of the violation, the elected 

or appointed official's intent, any history or pattern of abuse by the named elected or appointed official, 

and any economic or other benefit received by the named elected or appointed official. 

  (H) Annual commission report. 

   (1) The commission shall prepare, on an annual basis, a summary report that 

contains: 

    (a) A general description of the activities of the commission during 

the past year; 

    (b) The number of ethics complaints filed with the commission; 

    (c) The number of ethics complaints dismissed; and 

    (d) An executive summary of each complaint where the commission 

found a violation of the Municipal Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act. 

   (2) The annual report of the commission shall be filed with the respective 

governing body and with the city manager and shall be a public record. 

 



 

10 

 

II. NO NEW ENTITY 

 This agreement is not intended to create a new or separate entity, as contemplated by the 

Interlocal Agreement Act. 

III. TERMINATION 

 This agreement shall terminate fifty (50) years from the date the last party enters into the 

agreement.  Any party may withdraw from this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice, with or 

without cuase. 

IV. COURSE AND SCOPE 

 The members of the commission are within the course and scope of their employment with their 

respective cities when fulfilling their role as a commission member pursuant hereto. 

       BOUNTIFUL CITY 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       JOE JOHNSON 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

KIM COLEMAN     RUSSELL MAHAN 

City Recorder      City Attorney 

 

 

 

        

  



 

11 

 

       CLEARFIELD CITY 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       DON W. WOOD 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

NANCY R. DEAN     BRIAN E. BROWER 

City Recorder      City Attorney 

 

 

 

        LAYTON CITY 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       J. STEPHEN CURTIS 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

THIEDA WELLMAN    GARY R. CRANE 

City Recorder      City Attorney 

 

 

  



 

12 

 

 

 

       ROY CITY 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       JOE H. RITCHIE 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

AMY MORTENSON     ANDREW H. BLACKBURN 

City Recorder      City Attorney 

 

 



1 

Memo 
To: Mayor Wood and City Council Members 

From: JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager 

Date: October 3, 2013 

Re: Jon’s Park Subdivision – Addendum #1 to Development Agreement 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve the attached Addendum #1 to Development Agreement between Clearfield 
City Corporation and Evergreen Holding, LLC. 

II. DESCRIPTION / BACKGROUND 

On April 22, 2010, the City Council approved the final plat for Jon’s Park, and the 
corresponding Development Agreement was executed on June 29, 2010.  However, 
the final plat was never recorded and no construction ever took place, resulting in the 
expiration of that plat approval. 

The applicant is now seeking re-approval of the plat.  At their September 4 meeting, 
the Planning Commission approved (with conditions) the preliminary plat, and 
recommended approval of the final plat.  The final plat approval is on the City Council’s 
agenda for the October 8 meeting. 

In the course of reviewing the resubmitted plat application, it became apparent that the 
existing Development Agreement would need to be amended.  The attached 
Addendum #1 amends the Development Agreement to accomplish the following: 

• Incorporate the updated plat / subdivision improvement drawings. 

• Allow for an assessment area to be considered as an alternative to an HOA, for 
the maintenance of the development’s open space. 

• Provide for certain off-site improvements to be escrowed for.  This will allow the 
City to utilize these funds toward a comprehensive improvement project on 
Pacific Street in the near future. 

• Installation of a chip seal instead of a slurry seal after the installation of sanitary 
sewer and storm drain improvements (difference to be paid for by the City). 

  



 Page 2 
 

III. IMPACT 

a. Fiscal 

If an assessment area is pursued instead of an HOA, the result would be 
increased revenues to the City via the annual assessment on the properties.  
There would also be a corresponding increase in expenditures to maintain the 
project’s open space.  The result should be a net zero fiscal impact. 

The Addendum would have the Developer escrow for asphalt, curb and 
gutter, and storm drain improvements on Pacific Street.  These funds would 
then be utilized by the City for a comprehensive improvement project on that 
Street, with a greater scope than what would be required of the Jon’s Park 
Developer.  The City has not yet received an engineer’s estimate, which 
would be the basis of the escrow agreement, but that would be the next step. 

The existing Development Agreement required only a slurry seal on 300 
West, because that was the standard at the time.  Since then, the City’s 
standard has changed to a chip seal.  The Addendum requires the Developer 
to install the chip seal, but the City will pay for the cost of the upgrade 
(estimated at $1,500). 

b. Operations / Service Delivery 

If an assessment area is pursued instead of an HOA, the City would have 
control over the maintenance of the open space, which would probably be 
contracted out.  On the other hand, with an HOA, there is always the 
possibility of the HOA failing to perform, leading to code compliance issues.  
We have seen this happen in other cases, and/or the HOA requesting at 
some time that the City take over the open space.  For these reasons, the City 
may prefer an assessment area over an HOA, but the Developer is interested 
in the most cost-effective option (which is yet to be determined). 

The fact that improvements on Pacific Street would be escrowed commits the 
City to commencing our capital project there perhaps sooner than we 
otherwise would have done.  Pacific Street already is on our “Top 20” list, but 
having funds in escrow (based on the current estimated costs) might move 
this project up the priority list. 

IV. ALTERNATIVES 

• Approve the Addendum as proposed (which already has the verbal agreement 
of the Developer) 

• Approve the Addendum with modifications (presuming the Developer agrees) 

  



 Page 3 
 

V. SCHEDULE / TIME CONSTRAINTS 

The Developer is ready to move forward with the subdivision as soon as all approvals 
are obtained—hoping to begin site work this fall. 

VI. LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

• Addendum #1 to Development Agreement 

 



ADDENDUM NO. 1 
to 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
between 

CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
and 

EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC. 
 

PURPOSE:  This Addendum amends the development agreement between Clearfield City Corporation 
(“City”) and Evergreen Holding, LLC (“Developer”), dated June 29, 2010 (“Agreement”), setting forth 
specific terms and conditions regarding the development of and construction on certain property known as 
the Jon’s Park Subdivision, Phases 1 & 2, located in Clearfield, Utah. 
 
The Agreement referenced above is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 
A. Exhibit “A” shall be replaced and superseded by the 2013 Plats and Improvement Drawings 

attached to this Addendum as Exhibit “B.” 
 

B. Section 1. j. shall be amended to read as follows:  “Parcels A and B shall be fully landscaped 
by the Developer.  The landscaping shall consist of sod and a minimum of three trees per 
Parcel, each with a caliper of no less than two inches (2”).  An automatic sprinkler system 
shall be installed for both Parcels.  Parcel A shall also contain a twenty foot (20’) wide access 
between lots 108 and 109, and a four foot (4’) wide path and park bench as shown in Exhibit 
“A.”  The Developer shall establish either a homeowners’ association or an assessment area 
to provide for the ownership and maintenance of open space Parcels A and B.  The 
association or assessment area shall include all of the lots shown on the Final Plats.  In the 
event that the homeowners’ association fails to maintain the open space areas, the City shall 
have the right, but not the obligation, to perform said maintenance and bill any costs 
associated therewith (including administrative overhead) to the Property owners.” 
 

C. Section 1. m. shall be amended to read as follows:  “Prior to any building permit being 
issued, the Developer shall provide the City with funds to cover the estimated current costs 
(less $5,000), as approved by the Clearfield City Engineer, for installing: i) a complete 1.5” 
overlay of Pacific Street from the north side of lot 213, southward to and including the cul-
de-sac on the north side of the Center Street bridge; and ii) curb and gutter on the east side of 
Pacific Street from the north side of lot 213, southward to the end of the cul-de-sac on the 
north side of the Center Street bridge, and to upgrade the storm water piping and box in the 
cul-de sac.” 

 
D. Section 1. n. shall be stricken in its entirety. 

 
E. Section 1. p. shall be amended to read as follows:  “The Developer shall install a chip seal as 

per City standards on the entire width of 300 West from the north side of 90 North Street 
(including the full cul-de-sac) to the south side of 25 South Street, following construction of 
the new sanitary sewer and storm drain.  The City shall reimburse to the Developer the 
difference in cost between chip seal and Type 3 slurry seal.” 

 
 
Per this Addendum, the Parties hereby amend the Agreement dated June 29, 2010 as set forth above this 
 
 _______ day of October, 2013. 



2 
 

 
 
CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION   EVERGREEN HOLDING, LLC 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________  
Donald W. Wood, Mayor    Neil Wall, Manager  
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    
 
 
_________________________________   
Community Development Director    
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    
 
 
_________________________________   
Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
_________________________________   
City Attorney’s Office 
 
 
 

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF UTAH  ) 

§ 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
 
On the _____ day of _________________________, 2013 personally appeared before me, Neil Wall, as 
signer of the foregoing document, who duly acknowledged to me that he has corporate authority on behalf 
of Evergreen Holding, LLC to execute the same. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

 
Residing: ________________________ 

  



3 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 










































	A100813.pdf
	CDBG Amendments.pdf
	091013wminutes.pdf
	092413minutes.pdf
	GP amendment 2013 City Council Staff Report.pdf
	2013-11 General Plan Amendment Template 10-2-13.pdf
	Exhibit A General Plan amendment 2013.pdf
	21.  Sidewalks should be provided in all commercial and residential areas.

	10-8-2013 Jons Park Staff Report.pdf
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	PROJECT SUMMARY
	ANALYSIS
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	ATTACHMENTS

	2013-08 Municipal Ethics Commission 9-24-13.pdf
	2013R-17 Ethics Commission 100813.pdf
	ETHICS COMMISSION - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 9-24-13.pdf
	Jon's Park Addendum #1 staff report.pdf



